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July 26. 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House '

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION
I

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Behavioral
Health, to amend a retroactive, sole source agreement with Greater Nashua Council on
Alcoholism (Vendor #166574-8001), 615 Amherst St. Nashua, NH 03063, for the provision of
substance use disorder treatrrient services, residential and/or supportive housing, and
wraparound services for pregnant and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance
use disorders, have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level, and are homeless or
at risk of becoming homeless, by increasing the price limitation by $166,667 from $1,500,000
to $1,666,667 and by extending the contract completion date from June 30, 2019 to October
31, 2019, effective retroactive to June 30, 2019, upon Governor and Executive Council
approval. 100% Federal Funds.

This agreement was' originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on
September 7, 2016 (Item #9 Vote 5-0) and amended on April 19, 2017 (Item #5A Vote 5-0),
June 21, 2017 (Item #20A Vote 5-0), and July 11, 2018 (Item #12 Vote 5-0).

Funds to support this request are anticipated to be available in the following account for
State Fiscal Year 2020 (SFY) upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in the
future operating budget, with authority to adjust amounts within the price limitation and adjust
encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, if needed and justified.

05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DERI OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY
ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES

SFY
Class/

Account
Class Title

Activity
Code

Current

Budget
Increase/

(Decrease)
Modified

Budget

2017 502-500891 Payments to Providers 45057500 $500,000 $0 $500,000

2018 502-500891 Payments to Providers 45057500 $500,000 $0 $500,000

2019 502-500891 Payments to Providers 45057500 $500,000 $0 $500,000

2020 502-500891 Payments to Providers 45057500 $0 $166,667 $166,667

Total; $1,500,000 $166,667 $1,666,667
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EXPLANATION

This request is retroactive to June 30, 2019 because there was a transition of the
contracts' oversight from one Department bureau to another close to the point of expiration.
The resulted in a need to ensure the Bureau of Drug and Alcohol Services had the ability to
review, understand and clarify the use of Temporary Assistance for Needy Families funding
internally and with the vendors.

The original agreement was sole source because the Contractor has been identified
as being among the few providers in the State having the ability and capacity to provide
substance use treatment services to pregnant and parenting women while allowing their
chiid(ren) to remain in the mother's care.

The purpose of this request is to continue the provision of substance use disorder
treatment services, residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to
pregnant and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use disorders and have
income at or below 185% of the Federal Poverty Level, and are homeless, or at risk of
becoming homeless. The Department has substantial data that indicates a growing need for
residential and/or supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who have
substance use disorders and who are currently homeless or at risk of becoming homeless.
Women with substance use disorders who have a child may need low or high intensity
residential treatment.

Approximately ten (10) women and their children in the Greater Nashua region will be
served during the four months from July 1, 2019 through October 31, 2019. During State
Fiscal Year 2019, this program served fifty-one (51) women (with 154 children). Services
provided included full and part-time daycare; housing assistance and supports; group, family,
and individual counseling; and employment supports.

Utilization patterns and research have shown that women who need housing and have
substance use disorders may not be found eligible for more traditional rapid re-housing
services. Additionally, women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder
issues are less likely to seek help due to concern that seeking help for a substance use
disorder could result in separation from their children.

The first statutory purpose of the TANF program is to provide a safety net for children
so they can continue to be cared for by their own family. The second statutory purpose of the
TANF program is to promote the independence of needy families through work and education.
The vendor will address needs of the adults in their care while assuring appropriate care for
the children in residence. The program that is funded by this contract is uniquely aligned with
the purposes of the TANF program and addresses an urgent need within our community. The
Contractor is providing services that assist families to reduce and remove barriers that are
preventing them from fully participating in the workforce and in the larger community. The
services provide assistance to families to reduce or eliminate dependence on public
assistance, and to secure their ability to provide for their families, while addressing clients'
substance use disorders.

The vendor is providing on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling, and counseling for co-occurring mental health illnesses. Residential treatment will
be based on American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) criteria of Six Dimensions of
Multidimensional Assessment to create a holistic biopsychosocial assessment of an individual
that will be used for service planning and treatment across all services and levels of care. All
services are designed to allow children to remain in the mother's care.
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Services may include, but are not limited to:

•  Communication classes

• Anger management classes

•  Coping skills

• Childbirth education classes

•  Nurturing parenting classes

•  Lactation services

• Therapeutic play

• MIndfulness, Spirituality and Life Coaching services

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers may not receive the substance use disorder treatment services they need,
and they may not be able to locate housing for themselves and their children.

Area Served: Greater Nashua area.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA #93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children
and Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF ; FAIN # 18NHTANF

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Re^ectfully submitted.

Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department ofHealth and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and famiJies
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN ODORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low Income
Pregnant and Parenting Women with Sut>8tance Use Disorders

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #4 to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention

and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders

This 4*^ Amendment to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low Income
Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders Contract (hereinafter referred to as
"Amendment #4") Is by and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human
Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Greater Nashua Council on
Alcoholism (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business
at 615 Amherst Street, Nashua, NH 03063.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on September 7, 2016 (Item #9) as amended on April 19, 2017 (Item #5A); June 21, 2017 (Item #20A):
and June 20, 2018 (Item # 21), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules or terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18, the State may modify the scope
of work and the payment schedule of the contract upon written agreement of the parties and approval
from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and '

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract and prior amendments not inconsistent with this
Amendment #4 remain in full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:

October 31. 2019.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read:

$1,666, 667.

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:

Nathan D. White, Director.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:

603-271-9631.

5. Delete Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in its entirety and replace with Exhibit A - Amendment #4,
Scope of Services.

6. Delete Exhibit B, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, in its entirety and replace with
Exhibit B - Amendment #4, Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment.

7. Add Exhibit B-1 - Amendment #4, SFY20 Budget.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Amendment #4 ContractorlnitiaU
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low Income
Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

This amendment shall be retroactively effective to June 30, 2019, upon the date of Governor and
Executive Council approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

\dA'f\
Date Katja S. Fox

Director

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism

^
Date Name: ^€llc«rvi^

Title: PrcSfde/ii-I-

Acknowledgement of Contractor's signature:

State of YJqm . County of on 7/2-3/^/'9 before the
undersigned officer, personally appeared the pdrson identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Nanie and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

•  WILUAM C. MARTINT/ly)Commission Expires. jutUoo of the Hainp<W»
'  My Commission ExpirMNovomber 4,2020

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Amendment #4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low Income
Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

NanJe^
S^-Title:

Dat

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Amendment #4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services

1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact
on the Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify
Service priorities and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to
achieve compliance therewith.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure appropriate use of funds consistent with the
Federally mandated purposes of the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
(TANF) program pursuant to 45 CFR 260.20, which may include:

1.2.1. Food, clothing, shelter (rent assistance), utilities, household goods,
personal care items, for up to four months for an individual family;

1.2.2. Child care and transportation for up to four months for an individual
family unless the parent is employed in which case services can be
extended;

1.2.3. Services such as substance use disorder treatment, counseling, case
management, peer support, job retention and job advancement,
including training and education, and other employment-related
services that do not provide basic income support;

1.2.4. Non-medical services not covered by Medicaid or private health
insurance, subject to Department approval which may include, but are
not limited to:

1.2.4.1. Dental services.

1.2.4.2. Auto registration.

1.2.4.3. Personal care.

1.2.4.4. Books and tuition.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide ASAM level 2.7 and lower Substance Use Disorder
(SUD) treatment, supportive housing, and wraparound services to TANF eligible
pregnant and/or parenting women who:

1.3.1. Are experiencing substance use disorders;

1.3.2. Have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and

1.3.3. Are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless.

1.4. The Contractor shall keep a record of how many individuals are screened, how
many are determined eligible, and how many are served, as specified in Section
1.3.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initial
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

1.5. The Contractor shall expand current services or increase services that are
currently available. Funds for this project cannot supplant services currently
available.

1.6. The Contractor shall be or become a New Hampshire Medicaid provider.

1.7. The Contractor shall work, In partnership, with the Department to review/assist
with program processes, service provision, and overall program outcomes.
Contractor shall work in collaboration with the Department to ensure desired
program benchmarks are achieved timely.

1.8. The Contractor shall comply with all relevant state and federal laws and
regulations which include, but are not limited to:

1.8.1. Requirements governing human subject's research when considering
research, including research conducted by student interns, using
individuals served by this contract as subjects.

1.8.2. Informing and receiving the Department's approval prior to initiating
any research involving the subjects or participants related to this
contract. The Department reserves the right, at its sole discretion, to
reject any such human subject research requests.

1.9. The Contractor shall report on critical incidents and sentinel events which
include, but are not limited to reporting:

1.9.1. All critical incidents to the Department in writing as soon as possible
and no more than 24 hours following the incident. The Contractor
agrees that:

1.9.1.1. "Critical incident" means any actual or alleged event or
situation that creates a significant risk of substantial or serious
harm to physical or mental health, safety, or well- being,
including but not limited to:

1.9.1.1.1. Abuse;

1.9.1.1.2. Neglect;

1.9.1.1.3. Exploitation;

1.9.1.1.4. Rights violation;

1.9.1.1.5. Missing person;

1.9.1.1.6. Medical emergency;

1.9.1.1.7. Restraint; or

1.9.1.1.8. Medical error.

1.9.2. All contact with law enforcement to the Department in writing as soon
as possible and no more than 24 hours following the incident;

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

1.9.3. All Media contacts to the Department in writing as soon as possible
and no later than 24 hours following the incident;

1.9.4. Sentinel events to the Department as follows:

1.9.4.1. Sentinel events shall be reported when they involve any
Individual who is receiving services under this contract;

1.9.4.2. Upon discovering the event, the Contractor shall provide
immediate verbal notification of the event to the Department,
which shall include:

1.9.4.2.1. The reporting individual's name, phone number, and
agency/organization;

1.9.4.2.2. Name and date of birth (DOB) of the indivldual(s)
involved in the event;

1.9.4.2.3. Location, date, and time of the event;

1.9.4.2.4. Description of the event, including what, when, where,
how the event happened, and other relevant
information, as well as the identification of any other
individuals involved;

1.9.4.2.5. Whether the police were involved due to a crime or
suspected crime; and

1.9.4.2.6. The identification of any media that had reported the
event.

1.9.4.3. Within 72 hours of the sentinel event, the Contractor shall
submit a completed "Sentinel Event Reporting Form"
(February 2017), available at
https://www.dhhs.nh.gov/dcbcs/documents/reporting-
form.pdf to the Department.

1.9.4.4. Additional information on the event that is discovered after

filing the form in Sectioni .9.4.3. above shall be reported to the
Department, in writing, as it becomes available or upon
request of the Department: and

1.9.4.5. Submit additional information regarding Sections 1.9.4.1
through 1.9.4.4 above if required by the department; and

1.9.4.6. Report the event in Sections 1.9.4.1 through 1.9.4.4 above,
as applicable, to other agencies as required by law.

1.10. The Contractor shall use the Web Infonriation Technology System (WITS) or an
alternative electronic health record approved by the Department to record all
client activity and client contact within three (3) days following the activity or
contact as directed by the Department. The Contractor shall:

Greater Nashua Council on Aicohoiism Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initialsi / / f
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

1.10.1. Ensure all client activity or contact includes, but is not limited to:

1.10.1.1. Screening.

1.10.1.2. Fee determination

1.10.1.3. Admission.

1.10.1.4. Billing.

1.10.1.5. Disenrollment.

1.10.1.6. Discharge Data.

1.10.2. Ensure all encounter notes track the client's progress with specific
treatment goals and include clinical content of the sessions.

1.11. The Contractor shall, obtain written consent from the client utilizing the consent
form as provided by Department prior to providing services. The Contractor
shall ensure:

1.11.1. Any client refusing to sign the informed consent form is not:

1.11.1.1. Entered into the WITS (or approved alternative) system.

1.11.1.2. Provided services under this contract.

1.11.2. Any client refusing to sign the consent form is assisted with finding
alternative payers for necessary services.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall ensure TANF eligible pregnant and/or parenting women
have access to services that include, but are not limited to:

2.1.1. Substance Use Disorder (SUD) Residential Treatment Services.

2.1.2. Outpatient SUD Treatment with Supportive Housing Services, as
available.

2.1.3. Outpatient SUD Treatment with Housing Stabilization Services.

2.1.4. Clinical staff to oversee treatment.

2.1.5. Access to on- and/or off-site age developmentally appropriate
childcare.

2.1.6. Transportation services to and from non-medical services.

2.1.7. Wraparound services.

2.1.8. Case management services.

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure pregnant and/or parenting women have seamless
access to services that will assist with reducing and removing barriers that are
preventing full participation in the vyorkforce and in the larger community.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholisin Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure services support a Continuum of Care that includes
wraparound services that support pregnant and parenting women in working to
end their dependence on public assistance; secure pregnant and parenting
women's ability to provide for their families; and address pregnant and parenting
women's substance use disorders.

2.4. The Contractor shall conduct outreach activities that publicize vendor services
available to the population being served which may include, but are not limited
to:

2.4.1. Street outreach programs.

2.4.2. Ongoing public service announcements (radio/television).

2.4.3. Regular advertisements in local/regional print media.

2.4.4. Posters placed in targeted areas.

2.4.5. Frequent notification of availability of such SUD treatment and
residential services for pregnant and parenting women and their
children distributed to the network of:

2.4.5.1. Community based organizations.

2.4.5.2. Health care providers.

2.4.5.3. Social service agencies.

2.4.5.4. Ethnic community based organizations.

2.5. The Contractor shall provide services according to evidence based models
and/or best practices, including Trauma Informed Care, with the ability to
monitor case management services, which shall include but is not limited to:

2.5.1. Initial intakes.

2.5.2. Clinical evaluations to determine the client's Substance Use Disorder

diagnoses based off the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental
Disorders (DSM-5). A Clinical Evaluation is a biopsychosocial
evaluation completed in accordance with Technical Assistance
Publication (TAP) 21: Addiction Counseling Competencies, available
at http://store.samhsa.gov/product/TAP-21-Addiction-Counseling-
Com petencies/SMAI 5-4171.

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure clients have access to and receive the appropriate
ASAM levels of care and services according to their needs based upon the
completed clinical evaluation. This may include, but is not limited to:

2.6.1. In-house, on-site, overnight substance used disorder (SUD)
residential treatment services in a facility licensed as a residential
treatment facility pursuant to Administrative Rule He-P 826.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initial
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.6.2. Outpatient SLID Treatment Services with Supportive Housing for up
to four (4) months, on or off site with the ability to provide onsite
substance use disorder treatment services. Supportive housing, may
include, but is not limited to, apartments within an apartment complex,
group housing, or shared housing. Funding for Supportive Housing
services shall be limited to 4 months based off the TANF regulations
around non-assistance categories.

2.6.3. Outpatient SLID Treatment Services with Housing Stabilization
Services that allow clients to remain in their homes while receiving
scheduled onsite SLID treatment services.

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure the basic needs of pregnant and parenting women
receiving services and the basic needs of her child(ren) are met within the first
24 hours of receiving services, on an on-going basis while receiving services
and after being discharged from services, which include, but are not limited to:

2.7.1. Housing.

2.7.2. Food.

2.7.3. Clothing.

2.7.4. Diapers.

2.7.5. Recovery Support Services

2.8. The Contractor shall admit both women and their children into treatment

services, as appropriate, allowing the child(ren) to remain in the mother's care.
The Contractor shall ensure:

2.8.1. Safe Sleep environments for infants aimed at reducing the risk of
Sudden Unexpected Infant Death syndrome, including Sudden Infant
Death Syndrome (SIDS).

2.8.2. Written policies are developed that describe the practices to be used
to promote Safe Sleep, in accordance with recommendations for the
American Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) when infants are napping or
sleeping. For detailed information on safe sleep refer to
http://cfoc.nrckids.Org/StandardView/3.1.4.1 and
http://pediatrics.aappublications.0rg/content/pediatrics/l 28/5/e1341 .f
ull.pdf.

2.8.3. Developmentally appropriate childcare is available to children, either
through on-site care or through arrangements with an off-site licensed
childcare provider. It is not expected that the on-site facility be
licensed but should follow NAEYC guidelines in regards to
developmentally appropriate childcare.

2.8.4. Supports for before and after school care are available for school age
children.

Greater Nashua Couricil on Alcoholism Exhibit A - Amendrrient #4 Contractor Initials^/ y j
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.8.5. Arrangements are In place that allow children to continue attending
school.

2.9. The Contractor shall provide interim services when no appropriate services are
immediately available while managing a waiting list. The Contractor shall:

2.9.1. Contact the Doorway in the client's area to connect the client with
SUD treatment services.

2.9.2. Assist the client with accessing services by:

2.9.2.1. Identifying alternate providers.

2.9.2.2. Actively reaching out to alternate providers on behalf of the
client.

2.9.3. Provide or refer to interim services until the appropriate level of care
becomes available, at either a contract agency or an alternative
provider. These services shall include, but are not limited to:

2.9.3.1. At least one 60 minute individual or group outpatient session
provided or offered per week;

2.9.3.2. Recovery support services, as needed by the client;

2.9.3.3. Individual and/or group counseling provided or offered on the
effects of alcohol and other substance use of abuse effects on

the fetus for pregnant woman.

2.9.3.4. Daily calls to the client if an emergent need arises to assess
and respond.

2.9.4. Provide counseling and education about HIV, Hepatitis C (HepC),
and Tuberculosis (TB), which shall include, but not be limited to:

2.9.4.1. The risks of needle sharing.

2.9.4.2. The risks of transmission to sexual partners and infants.

2.9.4.3. Steps that can be taken to ensure that HIV, HepC and TB
transmission does not occur.

2.9.4.4. Referral to HIV, HepC or TB treatment services, if necessary.

2.9.4.5. Referrals for prenatal care for pregnant women.

2.9.5. Establish and maintain a waiting list that monitors the wait time for
clients to receive services, from the date of Initial contact to the date
clients first receive services, other than screening and assessment.
The Contractor shall ensure the waiting list includes but is not limited
to:

2.9.5.1. A unique patient identifier;

2.9.5.2. Dates of requests for admission to treatment;

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initial
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.9.5.3. Provision of interim services and sources of those services;

2.9.5.4. Referrals made for treatment or interim services; and

2.9.5.5. Disposition of clients on the waiting list.

2.9.6. Provide a monthly report to the Department, Indicating the average
wait time for all clients, by type of service and payer source.

2.10. The Contractor shall offer tobacco education and treatment to all clients

receiving services. The Contractor shall:

2.10.1. Assess clients for motivation in stopping the use of tobacco products;

2.10.2. Offer resources such as but not limited to the Department's Tobacco
Prevention & Control Program (TPCP) and the certified tobacco
cessation counselors available through the QuitLine; and

2.10.3. Ensure tobacco use, in and of itself, is not used as grounds for
discharging clients from services being provided under this contract.

2.11. The Contractor shall develop substance use disorder treatment plans for all
clients based on clinical evaluation data and must address all ASAM (2013)
domains. The Contractor shall:

2.11.1. Update the treatment plans based on any changes in ASAM domain
no less frequently than every four (4) sessions or every four (4)
weeks, whichever is less frequent.

2.11.2. Ensure treatment plan goals, objectives and interventions are written
in terms that are specific, measurable, attainable, realistic iand timely.

2.11.3. Ensure treatment plans include medication assisted treatment, when
appropriate.

2.11.4. Ensure, if the performance of services involves the collection,
transmission, storage or disclosure of substance use disorder (SUD)
records, information, or data created by a 42 CFR Part 2 provider,
that safeguards, including consent and notices required by 42 CFR
Part 2, are provided prior to any disclosure of Part 2
information.

2.12. The Contractor shall ensure treatment plans include, but are not limited to:

2.12.1. A plan for permanent housing and recovery services.

2.12.2. Sufficient case management services, which shall include but is not
limited to, linking women with community services within the area in
which she will be permanently housed after receiving treatment
services.

2.12.3. Transportation services to ensure that the women and their children
have access to the treatment plan-specific services.
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2.12.4. Permanent housing and recovery services, which may include but are
not limited to:

2.12.4.1. Assistance with enrollment in Medicaid or other private
insurance.

2.12.4.2. Anger management classes.

2.12.4.3. Financial management classes.

2.12.4.4. Communication skills classes.

2.12.4.5. Spiritual support.

2.12.4.6. Health management, including stress management.

2.12.4.7. Organization and time management classes.

2.12.4.8. Parenting skills classes.

2.12.4.9. Plan to transition clients to the community once discharged.

2.13. The Contractor shall provide case management services with fidelity to the TIP
27: Comprehensive Case Management for Substance Abuse Treatment
(http://store.samhsa.gov/product/TIP-27-Comprehensive-Case-Management-
for-Substance-Abuse-Treatment/SMA15-4215) and the ASAM guidelines
(http://www.asam.org/publications/the-asam-criteria/about), which include, but
are not limited to:

2.13.1. Life skills coaching.

2.13.2. Employment services.

2.13.3. Referral to community resources.

2.13.4. Housing stability planning and support.

2.13.5. Peer to peer counseling.

2.13.6. Individual or group substance use services delivered by providers
working within their scope of practice.

2.13.7. Nonclinical services such as, but not limited to, job search, financial
management, skills development, and paraprofessional counseling
services for clients and their families.

2.14. The Contractor shall provide staffing to fulfill the roles and responsibilities that
support activities of this contract, which shall include medical and behavioral
health services that are delivered by providers operating within their scope of
practice in accordance with Chapter He-P 800 Residential Care and Health
Facility Rules, Part He-P 826 Rules for Residential Treatment and
Rehabilitation. The Contractor shall ensure staffing includes, but is not limited
to:

2.14.1. A minimum of one licensed supervisor, defined as:

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initial

SS-2017-OFA-02-Opend-01 Page 9 of 16 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.14.1.1. Masters Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (MLADC); or

2.14.1.2. Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (LADC) who also holds
eth Licensed Clinical Supervisor (LCS) credential; or

2.14.1.3. Licensed mental health provider.

2.14.2. Sufficient staffing levels that are appropriate for the services provided
and the number of clients served including, but not limited to:

2.14.2.1. Licensed counselors defined as MLADCs, LADCs and
individuals licensed by the Board of Mental Health Practice of
Board of Psychology. Licensed counselors may deliver any
clinical or recovery support services within their scope of
practice.

2.14.2.2. Unlicensed counselors defined as individuals who have

completed the required coursework for licensure by the Board
of Alcohol and Other Drug Use Providers, Board of Mental
Health Practice of Board, or Psychology and are working to
accumulate the work experience required for licensure.
Unlicensed counselors may deliver any clinical or recovery
support services within their scope of knowledge provided that
they are under the direct supervision of a licensed supervisor.

2.14.2.3. Certified Recovery Support Workers (CRSW) who may
deliver intensive case management and other recovery
support services within their scope of practice provided that
they are under the direct supervision of a licensed supervisor.

2.14.2.4. Uncertified recovery support workers defined as individuals
who are working to accumulate the work experience required
for certification as a CRSW who may deliver intensive case
management and other recovery support services within their
scope of knowledge provided that they are under the direct
supervision of a licensed supervisor.

2.14.3. Ensuring no licensed supervisor shall supervise more than twelve
(12) staff, in accordance with evidence-based practices.

2.14.4. Providing ongoing clinical supervision that occurs at regular intervals
in accordance with evidence based practices, at a minimum:

2.14.4.1. Weekly discussion of cases with suggestions for resources of
therapeutic approaches, co-therapy, and periodic
assessment of progress.

2.14.4.2. Group supervision to help optimize the learning experience,
when enough candidates are under supervision.
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2.14.5. One (1) half-time advanced registered nurse practitioner (ARNP)
through staffing or referral.

2.14.6. One (1) full-time individual with experience in child social emotional
development.

2.14.7. One (1) director/executive director.

2.15. The Contractor shall coordinate with a Public Health Epidemiologist in order to
collect data, complete surveillance, and complete evaluation of social
determinants of health and other public health and community health indicators.

2.16. The Contractor shall provide annual training to clinical staff on HCV/HIV/TB &
STDs. The Contractor shall:

2.16.1. Ensure in-service training Is available to staff; or

2.16.2. Ensure staff attend an offsite training as approved by the Department;
and

2.16.3. Provide a list of staff that attended and completed the trainings.

2.17. The Contractor shall prioritize clients being served and ensure the safety of
clients by:

2.17.1. Assessing all clients for risk of self-harm at all phases of treatment as
well as at discharge based on policies and processes approved by
the Department within 30 days from the contract effective date.

2.17.2. Ensuring appropriate staffing levels and continuity of care is
maintained in a state of an emergency.

2.17.3. Creating safety and emergency procedures within 3 months of the
contract effective date on the following:

2.17.3.1. Medical emergencies

2.17.3.2. Infection control and universal precautions, including use of
protective clothing and devices

2.17.3.3. Reporting employee injuries

2.17.3.4. Fire monitoring, warning, evacuation, and safety drill policy
and procedures

2.17.3.5. Emergency closings.

2.17.4. Ensuring altemative housing is available for all clients and their
children.

2.17.5. Ensuring all staff receive training for emergency and disaster
situations through continuous staff development that includes, but is
not limited to:

2.17.5.1. Adult and infant Cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR).

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Exhibit A - Amendment #4 Contractor Initials f

38-2017-OFA-02-Opend-01 Page 11 of 16 Date ̂



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A - Amendment #4

2.17.5.2. Use of Naloxone.

2.17.5.3. Fire and safety policies and procedures.

2.17.5.4. Universal precautions.

2.18. The Contractor shall:

2.18.1. Immediately begin seeking approval to conduct third party billing for
any eligible services.

2.18.2. Seek alternate sources of funding for non-blllable services from
sources the contractor may Identify.

2.18.3. Continue to maintain and provide services the contractor already has
in place for the population at need.

2.19. The Contractor shall ensure Individual Service Plans (ISPs) are developed for
all program participants and include a housing stability plan. The Contractor
shall ensure all clients are assessed for referral to internal program and/or
community partners to receive services that may Include but are not limited to:

2.19.1. Housing assistance.

2.19.2. Supportive services.

2.19.3. Child care.

2.19.4. Family reunification assistance.

2.19.5. Primary and behavioral health care.

2.19.6. Education and employment training/ support.

2.20. The Contractor shall continue conducting activities specified In the corrective
action plan described in Section 6.1, as monitored by the Department, until such
time the Contractor comes into compliance with contract requirements.

3. Reporting

3.1. The Contractor shall provide monthly reports that include, but are not limited to:

3.1.1. Year-to-date data on a Department-provided form.

3.1.2. Brief narrative identifying barriers experienced when providing
services in the previous month.

3.1.3. Plan to address barriers Identified in Section 3.1.2 during the following
month.

3.2. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports on the number of individuals
screened, determined eligible, and served as provided in Section 1.4.

3.3. The Contractor shall report on critical Incidents, as provided in Section 1.9, as
soon as possible and no later than 24 hours following the incident.
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3.4. The Contractor shall report on sentinel events, as specified in Section 1.9, no
later than 72 hours of the event occurring.

3.5. The Contractor shall submit quarterly reports on their efforts to conduct third-
party billing for any eligible services and seek alternate sources of funding for
non-billable services, as provided in Sections 2.18.1 and 2.18.2.

4. Benchmarks

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of services in this contract are operational no
later than six (6) months after the contract effective date.

4.2. The Contractor shall ensure 95% of the individuals on the waiting list described
in Section 2.9.5 are reached or attempted to be contacted at least one time per
week.

4.3. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of clients enrolled in program are screened,
assessed, and referred to the most appropriate level of care.

4.4. The Contractor shall ensure that 90% of clients are referred to onsite

employment programming to increase in financial stability and reduce
dependence of public assistance.

4.5. The Contractor shall ensure that 70% of enrolled children above the age of three
(3) receive initial assessments to inform ongoing child and family service plans.

5. Deliverables

5.1. The Contractor shall provide a service implementation plan to ensure 100% of
the services identified in this contract are available to a minimum of ten (10)
women and their children in the Greater Nashua, NH region.

5.2. The Contractor shall provide copies of all media used for outreach activities to
the Department for approval no later than sixty (60) days from the contract
effective date.

5.3. The Contractor shall ensure outreach activities, as described in Section 2.4, that
publicize the services begin no later than one hundred twenty (120) days from
the contract effective date.

5.4. The Contractor shall provide written polices described in Sections 2.8.2 and
2.17.1 to the Department no later than sixty (60) days from the contract effective
date.

5.5. The Contractor shall provide a copy of the waiting list described in Section 2.9.5
and 2.9.6 to the Department once every two (2) months.

5.6. The Contractor shall provide safety and emergency procedures in Section
2.17.3 to the Department no later than 30 days from the contract effective date.
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5.7. The Contractor shall provide sample staff development curriculum used in
trainings described in Section 2.17.5 to the Department no later than sixty (60)
days after the contract effective date.

5.8. The Contractor shall provide the sustainability plan described in Section 2.18.1
to the Department for review and approval no later than thirty (30) days after the
contract effective date.

6. Contract Compliance

6.1. The Contractor shall provide a corrective action plan to the Department within
thirty (30) days from the date of any audit findings. The Contractor shall ensure
the corrective action plan includes, but is not limited to;

6.1.1. The specific action(s) to be taken to correct each deficiency identified
by the Department.

6.1.2. The specific action(s) to be taken to prevent any future
reoccuiTence(s) of each deficiency.

6.1.3. The specific action steps and time line for implementing the actions
identified in Paragraphs 6.1.1 and 6.1.2 above.

6.1.4. A written plan for monitoring actions to ensure the actions identified
in Paragraphs 6.1.1 and 6.1.2 above are effective.

6.1.5. The frequency and method of reporting progress on implementation
and effectiveness of the corrective action plan to the Department.

7. Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity

7.1. In order to enable DHHS to evaluate the Contractor's fiscal integrity, the
Contractor agrees to submit to DHHS monthly, the Balance Sheet, Profit and
Loss Statement, and Cash Flow Statement for the Contractor. Program-level
Profit and Loss Statement shall include all revenue sources and all related

expenditures. The Profit and Loss Statement shall include a budget column
allowing for budget to actual analysis. Statements shall be submitted within
thirty (30) calendar days after each month end. The Contractor will be evaluated
on the following:
7.1.1. Days of Cash on Hand:

7.1.1.1. Definition: The days of operating expenses that can be
covered by the unrestricted cash on hand.

7.1.1.2. Formula: Cash, cash equivalents and short term investments
divided by total operating expenditures, less
depreciation/amortization and in-kind plus principal payments
on debt divided by days in the reporting period. The short-
term investments as used above must mature within three (3)
months and should not include common stock.
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7.1.1.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall have enough
cash and cash equivalents to cover expenditures for a
minimum of thirty (30) calendar days with no variance allowed.

7.1.2. Current Ratio:

7.1.2.1. Definition: A measure of the Contractor's total current assets

available to cover the cost of current liabilities.

7.1.2.2. Formula: Total current assets divided by total current
liabilities.

7.1.2.3. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a

minimum current ratio of 1.5:1 with 10% variance allowed.

7.1.3. Debt Service Coverage Ratio:

7.1.3.1. Rationale: This ratio illustrates the Contractor's ability to
cover the cost of its current portion of its long-term debt.

7.1.3.2. Definition: The ratio of Net Income to the year to date debt
service.

7.1.3.3. Formula: Net Income plus Depreciation/Amortization
Expense plus Interest Expense divided by year to date debt
service (principal and interest) over the next twelve (12)
months.

7.1.3.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial
Statements identifying current portion of long-term debt
payments (principal and interest).

7.1.3.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a

minimum standard of 1.2:1 with no variance allowed.

7.1.4. Net Assets to Total Assets:

7.1.4.1. Rationale: This ratio is an indication of the Contractor's ability
to cover its liabilities.

7.1.4.2. Definition: The ratio of the Contractor's net assets to total

assets.

7.1.4.3. Formula: Net assets (total assets less total liabilities) divided
by total assets.

7.1.4.4. Source of Data: The Contractor's Monthly Financial
Statements.

7.1.4.5. Performance Standard: The Contractor shall maintain a

minimum ratio of .30:1, with a 20% variance allowed.

7.2. In the event that the Contractor does not meet either:

7.2.1. The standard regarding Days of Cash on Hand and the standard
regarding Current Ratio for two (2) consecutive months; or

7.2.2. Three (3) or more of any of the Maintenance of Fiscal Integrity
standards for three (3) consecutive months, then
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7.2.3. The Department may require that the Contractor meet with
Department staff to explain the reasons that the Contractor has not
met the standards.

7.2.4. The Department may require the Contractor to submit a
comprehensive corrective action plan within thirty (30) calendar days
of notification that 7.2.1 and/or 7.2.2 have not been met.

7.2.4.1. The Contractor shall update the corrective action plan at least
every thirty (30) calendar days until compliance is achieved.

7.2.4.2. The Contractor shall provide additional Information to assure

continued access to services as requested by the
Department. The Contractor shall provide requested
information in a timeframe agreed upon by both parties.

7.3. The Contractor shall Inform the Department by phone and by email within
twenty-four (24) hours of when any key Contractor staff leam of any actual or
likely litigation, investigation, complaint, claim, or transaction that may
reasonably be considered to have a material financial impact on and/or
materially impact or impair the ability of the Contractor to perfonn under this
Agreement with the Department.

7.4. The monthly Balance Sheet, Profit & Loss Statement, Cash Flow Statement,
and all other financial reports shall be based on the accrual method of
accounting and include the Contractor's total revenues and expenditures
whether or not generated by or resulting from funds provided pursuant to this
Agreement. These reports are due within thirty (30) calendar days after the end
of each month.
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, Block 1.8,
in accordance with the budget In Exhibit B-1, Budget for the services provided by the
Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This contract is funded with 100% federal funds available through the Catalog of Federal and
Domestic Assistance (CFDA) # 93.558, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services,
Administration for Children and Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
Program, Federal Award Identification Number (FAIN) 18NHTANF.

3. Payment for said services shall be made as follows;

3.1. The Contractor shall submit an invoice by the tenth (lO''^) working day of each month,
which identifies and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses incurred In the
prior month.

3.2. The Contractor shall have documentation available upon request covering the same
period as the invoice in Section 3.1 that identifies all payments made on behalf of each
client, including the purpose for each payment, the payee for each payment, and any
appropriate backup documentation.

3.3. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice for Contractor services provided pursuant to this Agreement.

3.4. The invoice shall be submitted by mail through the US Postal Services or email to:

Director

Bureau of Alcohol and Drug Services
Department of Health and Human Services
105 Pleasant Street

Concord. NH 03301
Email: Annette.escalante@dhhs.nh.gov

4. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than forty-five (45) days from the Form
P37. General Provisions. Contract Completion Date, Block 1.7.

5. Any request to adjust a prior invoice must be accompanied by supporting documentation and
is subject to Department approval.

6. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under
this Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part, in the event of noncompliance with any
State or Federal law, rule or regulation applicable to the services provided, or if the said
services have not been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this
Agreement.

7. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited
to transfer the funds within the budget in Exhibit B-1 Amendment #4 and within the price
limitation, can be made by written agreement of both parties and may be made without
obtaining approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

8. Non Reimbursement for Services

Greater Nashua Counci) on Alcoholism Exhibit B-Amendment #4 Contractor Initial

SS-2017-DFA-01-Opend-01
Page 1 of 2 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS Homelessness Prevention & Support for
Low Income Pregnant and Prenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit B - Amendment #4

8.1. The State shall not reimburse the Contractor for services provided through this contract
when a client is or may be eligible for an alternative payer for services described in
Exhibit A, Scope of Work including, but not limited to:

8.1.1. Services covered by any New Hampshire Medicaid programs for clients who
are eligible for New Hampshire Medicaid.

8.1.2. Services covered by Medicare for clients who are eligible for Medicare.

8.1.3. Services covered by a client's private insurer{s).

8.2. Notwithstanding Section 8.1 above, the Contractor may seek reimbursement from the
State for services provided under this contract when a client needs a service that is not
covered by the payers listed in Section 8.1.

9. The Contractor shall:

9.1. Directly bill and receive payment for services and/or transportation provided under this
contract from public and private insurance plans, the clients, and the Department.

9.2. Utilize a billing and payment system that enables expedited processing to the greatest
degree possible in order to not delay a client's admittance into the program and to
immediately refund any overpayments.

9.3. Maintain accurate accounting and records for all services t>illed, payments received
and overpayments refunded.

10. Submitting Charges for Payment

10.1. The Contractor shall:

10.1.1. Review the invoice and associated backup documentation no later than twenty
(20) days following the last day of the billing month and submit the Invoice and
documentation to the Department for review.

10.1.2. Correct any errors In the invoice and documentation no later than seven (7)
days after being notified of the errors, and submit the corrected Invoice and
documentation to the Department for review.

10.2. The Contractor agrees that billing submitted for review sixty (60) days after the last day
of the billing month may be subject to non-payment.

11. Funds in this contract may not be used to replace funding for a program already funded from
another source.

12. The Contractor will keep detailed records of their activities related to Department funded
programs and services.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Exhibit B - Amendment #4 Contractor Initial
SS-2017-DFA-01-Opend-01

Page 2 of 2 Date



OPEN OOORS - HenMlMSiWM PriyenUon M Suppetts Iw
Lew meern* PragnaM and PvanOng Woman ««h SUwIanca Um Otanian Conlrad

ExhM B-1 - AmandmacK M

SFYZOBudgal

New Hampshirt Oftpartmtnt of HtaHh and Human Swvtcaa

CenOaeter fUma: Oiaalar Naahva Coundi on Aleohoaam

Budgat Raquad tor OPEN DOORS

Budgal Parted: SfY »(7tlHt • iWJifis)

TotM Preoram Coat Contractor Share f M ficti Fuftdac tnr DHHS contract ahara -'S rf
LIna Rant -Dlraet • •• tftdlrad - ToM Olraet Total ..

1. Totd SdamWanaa t  82.075 8 8.207 8 08 Tit? 8 8 8  82 075
?. Emetovaa DaiiaWi S  7*73 S 787 8 0 000 8 8 8  7,873 707 8
3. Conacdlarta S 8 8 8 8 8
4. Eatiofnara: 8 8 8 8 8

RanM 8 8 8 8 8 8
RapaRand MaWananea t  43 8 4 8 47 8 8 8  43 4 8 47

Piathaaameoradation 8 8 8 8 8
5. Oupplaa: 8 8 8 8 8 8

Educdienal 8 8 8 8
Lab 8 8 8 8 8 8
Ptiarmacv 8 8 8 8
Madleal 8 8 8 8 8
Offiea i  M7 8 M 8 1.005 8 8

S. Traval t  571 8 57 f 020 8 8 8  571
7. Occutancv t  5820 8 503 8 0.101 8 8
B Ciarard Exoanaaa 8 8 8 8 8

Tatapltena 3  318 8 32 8 350 8 8 8  318 32 8 350

Poataoa 8 8 8 8 « 8
SuPacrtoHona 8 8 8 8 g 8 8
Audi and 1 anal 8 8 8 8 j

Inaiaaiea t  405 8 40 8 445 8 8 8  406
Beard Ddnaaa 5 8 8 8 8 g 8 8

S. Sodwara t  1007 8 107 8 1.033 8 8 8  1 807

10. MartaBrmConmanit'^aia 8 8 8 8 g 8 8
11. Staff Edueadon vid Ti**q t  107 8 17 8 103 8 8 8  187 17

12. Subcerwaeta/Aaiawiiaiti 8 8 8 8
13. Olhar-Ciar* AaaManea t  40.05? 8 4.805 8 53*47 8 8

CNU Care Com 5  30J3I 8 7 003 07 72 013 77 8 8 8  20.031
CMra TranaooctadDn 5  7mnan 8 200.00 8 7 700 00 8 8 8  2,00000 200.00 8 2.70000

8 8 8 8 8 8
TOTAL 5  181.515 8 '  15.182 8 ■100.007.00 8 8' 151,515.45 15.151.55 8- ■" 100.007.00

Indtract Aa A Partant of Daact

Graalar Naatwa Coundi en AJeeheasm
ExNU B-1 • AmandmanI M
SS-20l7-0PA-a2-OPENO41
Paga 1 of I

Contraetv liRlala

3



State of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that GREATER NASHUA

COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on

December 16, 1983.1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been received

and is in good standing as far as this office is concemed.

Business ID: 74349

Certificate Number: 0004516977

u.

o

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

1 hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 17th day of May A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

^.0"'^t F' ^(Name of the elected Officer of^the Aaencv: cannot
do hereby certify that:

Agency: cannot be contract signatory)

1. 1 am a duly elected Officer of f^PfdMr CX-)U/yCi'l nh
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on

e)

RESOLVED: That the ~f (ZP/9^
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter Into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,
or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

^  f^oing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain In full force and effect as of
thef^ davof Qc//u 20/f.

(Date CcyWact 6^ned)

4. Z^e/kAer is the duly elected
(Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

County of

(Signature of the Elected Officer)

The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of 20 f) .

By

(Name of Elected Officer of the Agency)

"< ■.
.  . ,K

(Notary Public/Justice of the Peace)

iNOTARV^SEAL) "
r  : -r. ' \ WILUAM C. MARTTN
r. r- \ 3 Ju««oeqfth8P«®oe-NewH«np#W»
bomiSiislon^xDlreii" j"" E*Pi™. Novmbr 4,2020

V( • n'



ACORCf CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MM/DOrTYYY)

6/28/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS

CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND. EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.
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102 Perimeter Road
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melansonheath.com
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Andover, MA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT creenreid, ma
Manchester. NH

Ellsworth. ME

To the Board of Directors of

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Greater Nashua Council
on Alcoholism, which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30,
2018, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these finan
cial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and mainte
nance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller Gen
eral of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are

free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assess
ments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and



fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opin
ion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by manage
ment, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism as of
June 30, 2018, and the changes in net assets and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism's fiscal year
2017 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those
audited financial statements in our report dated January 10, 2018. In our opinion, the
summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2017 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial
statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matters

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial
statements as a whole. The supplementary Information is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.



other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report
dated December 20, 2018 on our consideration of Greater Nashua Council on
Alcoholism's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism's internal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering Greater Nashua Council on
Alcoholism's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

December 20, 2018



GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM

Statement of Financial Position

June 30. 2018

(With Comparative Totals as of June 30, 2017)

ASSETS

2018 2017

Current Assets;

Cash and cash equivalents $ 315,659 $ 252,981
Receivables, net 555,874 1,318,521

Promises to give - 3,000
Prepaid expenses • 5,088

Total Current Assets 871,533 1,579,590

Noncurrent Assets:

Properly and equipment, net of

accumulated depreciation 5,605,937 5,686,027

Restricted cash 29,752 38,482

Due from related organizations 238,993 -
Total Noncurrent Assets 5,874,682 5,724,509

Total Assets $ 6,746,215 $ 7,304,099

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 45,129 $ 76,165
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 214,127 225,962
Due to related organizations - 399,615

Line of credit 348,779 128,779

Current portion of bonds and mortgages payable, net 128,006 123,992

Total Current Liabilities 736,041 954,513

Long-Term Liabilities:

Bonds and mortgages payable, long term, net 3,606,761 3,734,588
Mortgages payable, deferred 1,885,000 1,885,000

Total Long-Term Liabilities 5,491,761 5,619,588

Total Liabilities 6,227,802 6,574,101

Unrestricted Net Assets 518,413 729,998

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 6,746,215 $ 7,304,099

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM

Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30,2018

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30,2017)

Support and Revenue;

Support:

Bureau of Drug and Alcohol grants

Other federal grants
State of New Hampshire

Contributions

In-kind donations

Revenue:

Client services:

Medicaid

Third party insurance

Client billings, net

Contracted services

Other income

Interest income

Total Support and Revenue

Expenses:

Program services
General and administrative

Fundraising

Total Expenses

Change in Net Assets

Unrestricted Net Assets, Beginning of Year

Unrestricted Net Assets, End of Year

2018

$  3,472,339

20,278

2,231

1,968,601

23,082

28,394

298.483

6,885

M

5,820,343

5,249,192

700,477

82,259

6,031,928

(211,585)

729,998

$  518,413

2017

$ 3,806,540

130,017

59,000

30,741

57,225

1,550,194

65,060

34,465

366,645

13,723

620

6,114,230

4,767,612

633,487

112,042

5,513,141

601,089

128,909

$  729,998

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM

Statement of Functional Expenses

For the Year Ended June 30, 2016

(With Comparative Totals for the Year Ended June 30. 2017)

Advertising

Accounting fees

Client services

Client transportation

Contract sen/ices

Depreciation and amortization

Employee benefits

Food

Information technology

Insurance

Interest

Legal fees

Miscellaneous

Office supplies

Operating and maintenance

Operational supplies

Payroll taxes

Professional fees

Rent

Salaries and wages

Snow removal

Staff development

Staff travel

Telephone

Utilities

Vehicle expenses

Total

Program General and 2016 2017

Services Administrative Fundraisina Total Total

66.637 $  935 $ $  67,572 $  1,397

- 12,432 - 12,432 11,309

391,779 50 - 391,629 139,271

14.636 - - 14,636 7,369

449,942 26,407 336 476,665 656,354

200,420 33,017 - 233,437 220,102

367,430 71,622 4,962 444,014 362,923

102,593 467 - 103,060 96,506

2,603 10,223 274 13,300 64,167

23,662 1,249 • 25,111 20,673

161,326 6,179 - 169,507 156,922

2,675 249 - 2,924 5,061

19,535 1,046 - 20,561 35,243

37,545 953 - 36,496 35,641

61,650 2,987 - 64,637 74,177

31,378 143 - 31,521 24,217

221,676 40,421 5,540 267,639 206,497

9,634 625 • 10,259 2,121

90,093 4,942 - 95,035 166,064

2,836,067 475,617 71,102 3,362,966 2,993,248

9,057 363 - 9,420 7,065

19,355 3,520 . 22,675 44,666

16,027 1,296 45 17,366 15,513

16,905 753 • 19,658 16,360

76,014 2,761 - 76,775 76,796

17,749 . - 17,749 25,217

5,249,192 i  700.477 $  62,259 $ 6,031,926 S 5,513,141

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30,2018

{With Comparative Totals as of June 30. 2017)

Cash Flows From Operating Activities;
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Gain on disposal of fixed assets
(Increase) Decrease In:

Receivables

Promises to give
Prepaid expenses

Increase (Decrease) In:

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

Cash Flow From Investing Activities:
Purchase of fixed assets

Proceeds from sale of fixed assets

Net Cash Used By Investing Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Receipts from related organizations
Payments to related organizations
Proceeds from line of credit

Payments to line of credit
Proceeds from long term debt
Principal payments on long term debt

Net Cash Provided (Used) By Financing Activities

Net Increase

Cash. Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash. Beginning of Year

Cash. Cash Equivalents, and Restricted Cash, End of Year

Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:

Interest paid

2018 2017

;  (211,585) $  601,089

233,437 220,102

- (2,180)

762,647 (795,240)
3,000 (3,000)

6,567 2,669

(31,036) 27,365

(13,314) 60,583

749,716 111,388

(150,491) (214,154)
- 2,180

(150,491) (211,974)

1,074,901 1,362,697

(1,713,509) (1,088,233)

520,000 221,377

(300,000) (275,000)
- 200,000

(126,669) (97,657)

(545,277) 323,184

53,948 222,598

291,463 68,865

345,411 $  291,463

169,507 $  156,922

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM

Notes tO'the Financial Statements

1. Organization:

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (the Organization) is a nonprofit
organization providing recovery support services which are evidence-based,
gender-specific, and culturally competent. Programs include residential,
transitional housing, outpatient, intensive outpatient, family-based substance
abuse services, pregnant and parenting women and children, and offender
re-entry services initiative.

2. Summarv of Significant Accounting Policies:

Comparative Financial information

The accompanying financial statements include certain prior-year summarized
comparative information in total, but not by net asset class. Such information
does not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(GAAR). Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the
audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2017, from which the
summarized information was derived.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three
months or less, and which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for
long-term purposes, are considered to be cash and cash equivalents.

Receivables, Net

Receivables, net consist primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due for ser
vices and programs. The allowance for uncollectable receivables is based on
historical experience, an assessment of economic conditions, and a review of
subsequent collections. Receivables are written off when deemed uncollectable.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is reported in the Statement of Financial Position at
cost, if purchased, and at fair value at the date of donation, if donated. Prop
erty and equipment is capitalized if it has a cost of $2,500 or more and a
useful life when acquired of more than one year. Repairs and maintenance
that do not significantly increase the useful life of the asset are expensed as



incurred. Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows;

Land improvements 15 years
Building and improvements 30 years
Equipment 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 5-7 years
Software 3 years
Vehicles 5 years

Property and equipment is reviewed for impairment when a significant change
in the asset's use or another indicator of possible impairment is present. No

impairment losses were recognized in the financial statements in the current
period.

Net Assets

Net assets, revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence
or absence of donor-imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes
therein are classified and reported as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets - Net assets available for use in general operations.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets - Net assets subject to donor restrictions
that may or will be met by expenditures or actions and/or the passage of
time. Contributions are reported as temporarily restricted support if they
are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated
assets. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time
restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily restricted
net assets are reclassified to unrestricted net assets and reported in the
Statement of Activities as net assets released from restrictions.

Permanently Restricted Net Assets - Net assets whose use is limited by
donor-imposed restrictions that neither expire by the passage of time nor
can be fulfilled or otherwise removed.

The Organization has only unrestricted net assets.

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when earned. Program service fees and payments
under cost-reimbursable contracts received in advance are deferred to the

applicable period in which the related services are performed or expenditures
are incurred, respectively.



Accounting for Contributions

Contributions are recognized when received. All contributions are reported as
increases in unrestricted net assets unless use of the contributed assets is

specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted by
the donor to use in future periods or for specific purposes are reported as
increases in either temporarily restricted or permanently restricted net assets,
consistent with the nature of the restriction. Unconditional promises with pay
ments due in future years have an implied restriction to be used in the year
the payment is due and, therefore, are reported as temporarily restricted until
the payment is due unless the contribution is clearly intended to support
activities of the current fiscal year or is received with permanent restrictions.
Conditional promises, such as matching grants, are not recognized until they
become unconditional, that is, until all conditions on which they depend are
substantially met.

Gifts-in-Kind Contributions

The Organization periodically receives contributions in a form other than cash
or investments. Contributed properly and equipment is recognized as an asset at
its estimated fair value at the date of gift, provided that the value of the asset
and its estimated useful life meets the Organization's capitalization policy.
Donated use of facilities is reported as contributions and as expenses at the
estimated fair value of similar space for rent under similar conditions. If the
use of the space is promised unconditionally for a period greater than one
year, the contribution is reported as a contribution and an unconditional
promise to give at the date of gift, and the expense is reported over the term
of use. Donated supplies are recorded as contributions at the date of gift and
as expenses when the donated items are placed into service or distributed.

The Organization benefits from personal services provided by a substantial
number of volunteers. Those volunteers have donated significant amounts of
time and services in the Organization's program operations and in its fund-
raising campaigns. However, the majority of the contributed services do not
meet the criteria for recognition in financial statements. Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles allow recognition of contributed services only if (a) the
services create or enhance nonfinancial assets or (b) the services would have
been purchased if not provided by contribution, require specialized skills, and
are provided by individuals possessing those skills.

Grant Revenue

Grant revenue is recognized when the qualifying costs are incurred for cost-
reimbursement grants or contracts or when a unit of service is provided for
performance grants. Grant revenue from federal agencies is subject to inde
pendent audit under the Office of Management and Budget's, Uniform Grant
Guidance, and review by grantor agencies. The review could result in the dis-

10



allowance of expenditures under the terms of the grant or reductions of future
grant funds. Based on prior experience, the Organization's management
believes that costs ultimately disallowed, if any, would not materially affect the
financial position of the Organization.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summa
rized on a functional basis in the Statement of Activities. The Statement of

Functional Expenses presents the natural classification detail of expenses by
function. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs
and supporting services benefited.

Income Taxes

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism has been recognized by the Internal
Revenue Service (IRS) as exempt from federal income taxes under Internal
Revenue Code (IRC) Section 501(a) as an organization described in IRC
Section 501(c)(3), qualifies for charitable contribution deductions, and has
been determined not to be a private foundation. The Organization is annually
required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990)
with the IRS. In addition, the Organization is subject to income tax on net
income that is derived from business activities that are unrelated to its exempt
purpose. In fiscal year 2018, the Organization was not subject to unrelated
business income tax and did not file an Exempt Organization Business
Income Tax Return (Form 990-T) with the IRS.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles requires estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Accordingly,
actual results may differ frorn those estimates.

Financial Instruments and Credit Risk

Deposit concentration risk is managed by placing cash with financial institu
tions believed to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may exceed
insured limits. To date, no losses have been experienced in any of these
accounts. Credit risk associated with receivables is considered to be limited

due to high historical collection rates.

11



Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Certain liabilities are reported at fair value in the financial statements. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction in the principal, or most advantageous,
market at the measurement date under current market conditions regardless
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another val
uation technique. Inputs used to determine fair value refer broadly to the
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability,
including assumptions about risk, inputs may be observable or unobservable.
Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants
would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from
sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs
that reflect the reporting entity's own assumptions about the assumptions
market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the
best information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as
follows:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that are accessible at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These
include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are
not active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the
asset or liability, and market-corroborated inputs.

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations,
inputs are developed using the best information available in the
circumstances.

When available, the Organization measures fair value using Level 1 inputs
because they generally provide the most reliable evidence of fair value.
However, Level 1 inputs are not available for many of the assets and liabilities
that the Organization is required to measure at fair value (for example,
unconditional contributions receivable and in-kind contributions).

The primary uses of fair value measures in the Organization's financial
statements are:

Initial measurement of noncash gifts, including gifts of investment assets
and unconditional contributions receivable.

Recurring measurement of due (to) from related organizations - Level 3.

12



•  Recurring measurement of line of credit - Level 2.

•  Recurring measurement of bonds and mortgages payable - Level 2.

The carrying amounts of cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash, receiva
bles, accounts payable, and accrued expenses and other liabilities approximate
fair value due to the short-term nature of the items.

3. Receivables, Net:

Receivables at June 30, 2018 consist of the following:

Receivable Allowance Net

Grants $ 342.165 $ - $ 342,165
Medicaid 211,274 (9,268) 202,006
Other 11,703 - 11,703

Total $ 565,142 $ (9,268) $ 555.874

4. Property. Equipment and Depreciation:

A summary of the major components of property and equipment is presented
below:

2018 2017

Land $  742,500 $ 742,500

Construction in progress 241,363 143,865

Land improvements 6,644 1,743

Building 5,646,560 5,646,560

Building improvements 90,526 45,813

Computer equipment 25,233 21,854

Furniture and fixtures 38,711 38,711

Software 57,594 57,594

Vehicles 55,838 55,838

Subtotal 6,904,969 6,754,478

Less: accumulated depreciation (1,299.032) (1,068,451)

Total $  5,605,937 $ 5,686,027

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 totaled
$230,582 and $217,248, respectively.
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5. Restricted Cash:

Restricted cash consists of funds required to be used for the replacement of
property, with prior approval by the New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority.

6. Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities:

Accrued expenses and other liabilities consist of the following:

2018 2017

Accrued payroll and related liabilities $ 206,274 $ 219,476

Accrued interest 6,374 6,374

HSA liability - 112
Other accruals 1,479 -

Total $ 214,127 $ 225,962

7. Due From (to) Related Organizations:

Due from (to) related organizations represents short-term assets and liabilities
due from (to) related entitles whereby common control is shared with the
same Board of Directors. The related organizations and their balances at
June 30, 2018 are as follows:

2018 2017

Current:

Harbor Homes, Inc. $ 265,768 $ (380,115)
Milford Regional Counseling Services 204
Southern New Hampshire HIV/AIDS Task Force (27,012) (19,500)
Welcoming Light, Inc. 33_ -

Total $ 238,993 $ (399.615)

As discussed in Note 2, the valuation technique used for due from (to) related
organizations is a Level 3 measure because there are no observable market
transactions. Changes in the fair value of assets measured at fair value on a
recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs are as follows:

Beginning balance June 30, 2017 $ (399,615)
Advances 1,713,509

Reductions (1,074,901)

Ending balance June 30, 2018 $ 238,993

14



8. Line of Credit:

At June 30, 2018, the Organization had $750,000 of credit available from
Merrimack County Savings Bank due on demand, and secured by all assets
and guaranteed by Harbor Homes, Inc., a related party (see Note 13). The
Organization is required, at a minimum, to make monthly interest payments at
the Wall Street Journal Prime Rate plus 1.00% (6.00% at June 30, 2018) to
Merrimack County Savings Bank. As of June 30, 2018, the credit line had an
outstanding balance of $348,779.

Bonds and Mortgages Payable:

Bonds and mortgages payable as of June 30, 2018 were as follows:

$3,963,900 in New Hampshire Health and Education
Facilities Authority bonds, dated September 15, 2014, due in
monthly installments of $19,635, including principal and
interest at 4.00%, maturing in 2042, secured by real
property owned and guaranteed by Harbor Homes, Inc.

$200,000 loan from New Hampshire Health and Education

Facilities Authority, dated March 6, 2017, due in monthly
installments of $3,419, including principal and interest at
1.00%, maturing in 2022, secured by real property, and
guaranteed by Harbor Homes, Inc.

Less: debt issuance costs, net

Total

Less amount due within one year

Long term debt, net of current portion

$ 3,653,055

150,933

(69,221)

3,734,767

(128.006)

$ 3.606.761

The following is a summary of future payments on the previously mentioned
long-term debt.

Year

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

Thereafter

Total

$

Amount

128,006

131,731

136,371

130,535

104.080

3,104.044

$  3.734.767
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Debt issuance costs, net of accumulated amortization, totaled $69,221 as of
June 30, 2018, and are related to the New Hampshire Health and Education
Facilities Authority bonds described above. The debt issuance costs on the
above bonds are being amortized over the life of the bonds. Amortization
expense for fiscal year 2018 was $2,855.

10. Mortgages Payable. Deferred:

The Organization received special financing as partial funding for a new build
ing. These notes are interest free for thirty years with principal payments
calculated annually at the discretion of the lender. Certain covenants apply
related to eligibility and use of the mortgaged property. The balance of these
notes at June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston - Affordable

Housing Program $ 385,000
New Hampshire Housing Finance Authority 1,500,000

Total $ 1,885,000

11. Net Assets Released from Restriction:

There were no restricted net assets during the year ended June 30, 2018
and, as a result, no net assets were released from restrictions.

12. Deferred Compensation Plan:

The Organization offers a 401 (k) retirement plan. Upon meeting the eligibility
criteria, employees can contribute a portion of their wages to the 401 (k) plan.
The Organization will contribute as a matching contribution an amount equal
to 100% of employees' contributions that is not in excess of 6% of their
contribution. Total matching contributions paid by the Organization for the
year ended June 30, 2018 were $69,630.

13. Transactions with Related Parties:

As a commonly controlled organization by way of its common board of
directors and management, the Organization is included in the consolidated
financial statements of Harbor Homes, Inc. The following transactions
between the Organization and Harbor Homes, Inc. occurred during the fiscal
year 2018:
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•  The Organization is a corporate guarantor for Harbor Homes, Inc.,
related to the mortgage on their Northeastern Boulevard property. The
guaranty consists of one mortgage in the amount of $1,125,000.

•  The Organization receives janitorial and maintenance services
performed by clients of Harbor Homes, Inc., a related organization.

•  The Organization also receives payroll services from the related
organization, billed at actual cost.

•  The Organization rents space from Harbor Homes, Inc., a related
organization. Rent expense for the year under this agreement was
$27,383.

The Organization also offers counseling services to the clients of Harbor
Homes, Inc. and other related organizations included in the consolidated
financial statements of Harbor Homes, Inc.

14. Concentration of Risk:

A material part of the Organization's revenue is dependent upon support from
the State of New Hampshire and Medicaid, the loss of which would have a
materially adverse effect on the Organization. During the year ended June 30,
2018, the State of New Hampshire accounted for 60% and Medicaid
accounted for 34% of total revenues.

15. Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:

The Organization has adopted Accounting Standard Update (ASU) No. 2016-
18, State of Cash Flows (Topic 203): Restricted Cash. The amendments in
this update require that a Statement of Cash Flows explain the change during
the fiscal year of restricted cash as part of the total cash and cash
equivalents.

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents,
and restricted cash reported in the Statement of Financial Position to the
same such amounts reported in the Statement of Cash Flows.

2018 2017

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 315,659 $ 252,981
Restricted Cash 29,752 38,482

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents, and
Restricted Cash shown in the Statement

of Cash Flows $ 345,411 $ 291,463
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16. Subsequent Events:

In accordance with the provisions set forth by FASB ASC, Subsequent Events,
events and transactions from July 1, 2018 through December 20, 2018, the
date the financial statements were available to be issued, have been
evaluated by management for disclosure. Management has determined that
there were no material events that would require disclosure in the
Organization's financial statements through this date.
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GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOLISM

Schedule of Program Services Expenses

For the Year Ended June 30,2018

Cynthia Day Drug Court • Hartx)r HiOsborough HUD

Crisis Call Famiiy Center Rockingtiam Homes High County Transitional Incarceration

Center CMHIRT Countv Passthrouoh Intertsitv DOC Livirw lOP

Advertising S  64.349 S  1,151 $ S S  704 S $  66 S
Accounting fees - - . . . . . .

Client services - 26.355 18,184 . 4,285 . 403

Client transportation
- 3.090 . . 2,511 . 359

Contract services 154 5.440 . 438,873 3.327 . 310 .

Depreciation 1,615 100.410 . . 59,992 . 5,276
Employee benefits 20.535 85,960 24,476 388 68,684 34,784 203 ie.453
Food 27 45,957 797 . 35,491 . 5,024 _

Information technology 24 1.371 . . 839 . 78
Insurance 414 10.136 389 287 6.419 11 593
Interest 1.405 80,459 . . 49,202 4,589
Legal fees 16 1,294 . . 853 _ 94

Miscellaneous 1.294 3,389 7,573 . 1,499 759 206

Office supplies 1.772 9,991 3,967 . 6,651 3.745 747 671
Operating and maintenance 2.206 27.521 3,816 . 17,650 . 1.745 .

Operational supplies 31 14.036 302 . 10,499 . 1,444
Payroll taxes 21,223 49,472 20,898 169 38,734 12,369 340 11.022
Professional fees 84 4,805 . . 2,938 . 274
Rent 4,152 . 33,600 . _ . .

Salaries artd wages 269.846 621,968 273,220 2,159 536,109 159,705 3,638 139.805
Snow removal 79 4,517 . . 2,762 . 258 _

Staff development 2.093 4,849 5,592 . 2,733 . 293

Staff travel 960 2,051 5,061 . 1,329 . 152 2.231
Telephone 2,002 6,085 3,687 . 3.721 26 347 132

Utilises 601 34,414 7,011 . 21,044 . 1,963
Vehicle expenses - 3,834 - . 3,325 . .

Total program services
expenses $  394,882 S  1.148,555 S  441,876 S  881,301 S  211,399 S  28,402 %  170.314

(continued)
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(continued)

incarceration- Intensive Ij)w Open Recovery Non General and Total

QP Outoatient Intensity Doors Outoatienf SuDDort DHHS Total Admintstrative Fundratsura Exoenses

S $ S  367 $ $ S 5 S  66.637 $  935 i J  67.572
-

• - - - - . - 12.432 . 12,432
- 175 1,410 337,501 140 . 3.326 391,779 50 . 391,829
- -

1.067 7.600 - 9 - 14,636 . . 14,636
• - 1.736 - - • 102 449.942 26.407 336 476,685
• - 33.127 - - . - 200.420 33.017 . 233,437

3.583 15.989 23.200 26.468 30.231 15.176 1.300 367.430 71.622 4.962 444,014
-

-
15.297

- - - - 102.593 487 . 103,080
- - 438 53 • - . 2.803 10.223 274 13,300
256 121 3.301 1.320 303 257 53 23.862 1.249 . 25.111
• - 25.673

• - - - 161.328 8.179 . 169.507
- - 418

- - - - 2.675 249 . 2.924
- 457 1.030 2.100 1.219 9 - 19.535 1.046 . 20.581
- 2,092 3.262 2.476 2,171 - . 37.545 953 . 38.498
-

63 8.786 - 63 - - 61.850 2.987 . 64.837
- - 4.599 467 . - - 31.378 143 . 31.521

1.784 8,487 14.626 13.765 21.870 5,303 1.816 221.878 40,421 5,540 267.839
• - 1.533 - - • . 9.634 625 . 10.259
- 17.242 - 18.747 16.352 . - 90,093 4.942 . 95.035

22,371 114,636 176.524 159.192 278.963 66.853 10.878 2.836.067 475.817 71.102 3.382.986
- - 1.441 - - . . 9,057 363 . 9,420
- 1.045 1.354 350 1.046 . . 19.355 3.520 . 22.875
-

227 641 3.014 227 . 134 16,027 1.296 45 17,368
- - 1.942 803 - - 160 18,905 753 - 19,658
- - 10.981 - - • . 76,014 2.761 . 78,775
- - 1.784 - - 8,806 . 17.-749 . _ 17,749

$  160,734 $  573,856 $  352.585 S  96.413 $  17.769 S  5,249.192 S 700.477 $  82,259 S  6.031.928

See Independent Auditors' Report
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28 Day

Residential

CMM1RT

Advertising
Accounting fees

Client services

Client transportation
Contract services

Depreciation
Employee bertefits
Food

Information technotogy
Insurance

Interest

Legal fees

Mtsceflaneous

Office supplies
Operating and maintenance

Operational supplies
Payroll taxes
Professional fees

Rwit

Salaries and wages
Snow removal

Staff development
Staff travel

Telephone
Utilities

Vehicle expenses

3,077

686

243

55,171

60.020

29.501

2.064

4.214

41.564

231

732

5.690

18.957

6.904

33.145

434.072

2.072

1.504

1.040

2.085

19.672

2,054

90 Day

Residential

CMURT

2,462

300

34,358

35,158

20,453

17,181

2,002

4.547

24,730

107

3.375

12.150

4.123

11.123

346.982

1.081

738

690

1.412

12,945

2,332

Total program services expenses S 724,698 S 538,249

GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOUSM

Schedule of Pro^m Services Expenses

For the Year Ended June 30,2017

Crisis Cail

Center

1,094

2

1,598

19,287

1

73

314

1,234

2

11

1,020

539

27

21,043

269,938

59

1,591

349

1,703

603

2

320,490

Cynthia Day

Fanaly Center

CMHIRT

24,922

1,401

363

96,926

65.641

47,959

4,261

9,681

70,883

325

2,416

9,336

33,234

11,515

39,077

502,403

3,388

2.224

1,836

3,720

34,737

5,648

971,896

Friendship

House

Harbor

Homes

Passthrouoh

Hiilstxrrough

County

DOC

HUD

Tran$rtior>al

Livinq

178,766 374.851

1,717

105

667

19 846

1,188

18,287

178,766 $ 375,642 22,038

211

86

25

3,917

3,378

9

45

3.272

29

130

503

1,361

766

1,629

193

230

72

130

1,302

7

Incarceration -

lOP

33,961

123

2,318

4,624

15,864

209,533

935

2,914

90

$  17,295 $ 270,362

Incarceration'

OP

2,970

161

1,979

29,487

34,597

(continued)

21



(continued)

Infrastructure Intensive Open Project Recovery Non General and Total

Grant Outoatient Doors OutDatient Hope SuDoorl DHHS Total Administrative Furxlraisino Exoenses

5 $ $  $ . S . 1,094 S  303 $ $  1,397
- - - • - . . . 11,309 - 11,309

125 - 101,841 119 5,266 . 1,041 139,064 207 . 139,271

- - 4,649 • . . 47 7,369 . . 7,369
15.510 149 - - 20,680 - 2,170 627,117 31,237 - 658,354

- - - - - . . 192,770 27,332 . 220,102

13,090 17,310 1,526 17,729 1,609 22,095 17,472 294,880 64,120 3,923 362,923
- - - - - - 359 98,502 4 . 98,506

5.426 - - • - . . 13,835 70,352 . 84.187

- 75 - 189 81 160 262 19,834 1,039 . 20,873
- - - - - • . 141,683 15,239 . 156,922
- - - - - . 2,555 3,249 1,832 . 5.081

21.630 69 4,682 293 . 5 . 32,953 1,024 1,266 35.243

222 1,836 1,210 1,205 375 . 2,998 33,259 2,382 . 35.641

- 89 • 161 - . 1,560 68,051 6,126 . 74.177
- 233 - 233 - . 291 24,092 125 . 24,217

7,567 9,143 6,502 14,765 4,976 8,260 16,614 191,246 9,124 6,127 206,497

- - - - - • - • 1,771 350 2,121

93,750 10,053 6,304 14,243 . . 61,513 185,863 201 . 186,064
118,713 113,943 93,080 184,046 63,192 105,163 22,902 2,513,370 379,588 100,290 2,993,248

• - • • . . - 6,793 272 . 7,065
28,002 718 • 1,058 40 . 6,939 43,979 696 13 44,688

578 • 1,186 - 333 16 4,471 13,485 1,955 73 15,513

- - 238 - 426 742 3,473 14,019 4,341 . 18,360
- • 158 -• - . 6,481 75,898 2,898 . 78,796

- - - - - 15,164 - 25,207 10 . 25.217

;  304,613 S  153,618 221,376 234,041 96,978 151,605 151,148 4,767,612 S  633,487 S  112,042 S  5,513,141

See Independent Auditors' Report
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PETER J. KELLEHER, CCSW, LICSW
45 High Street

Nashua, NH 03060
Telephone:
Fax:

E-mail:

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

2006-Present

2002-PreseDt

1997-Present

1995-Preseiit

1995-Present

1982-Present

2003-2006

1980-1982

1979 - 1980

1978-1979

1977 -1979

1976

1971 -1976

President & CEO, Southern NH HIV Task Force
President & CEO, GNCA, Inc. Nashua, NH
President & CEO. Healthy At Home, Inc., Nashua, NH
President & CEO, Milford Regional Counseling Services, Inc., MUford, NH
President & CEO, Welcoming Light, Inc^ Nashua, NH
President & CEO, Harbor Homes, Inc., Nashua, NH
Cunently employed as chief executive officer of six nonprofit corporations (Partnership for Successful
Living) creating and providing residential and supportive services, mental health care, primary/preventive
health care, substance use disorder treatment and prevention services, supported employment and
workforce development, professional training, and in-home health care to individuals and families who are
homeless, livmg with disabilities, and/or are undcrscrved/membcrs of vulnerable populations. Responsible
for imtiation, development, and oversight of more than 50 programs comprising a $16,000,000 operating
budget; proposal development resulting in more than $9,000,000 in grants annually; oversight of 330
management and direct care professionals.

Consultant

Providing consultation and technical assistance throughout the State to aid service and mental health
organizations

Real Estate Broker, LcVaux Realty, Cambridge, MA
Successful sales and property management specialist.

Clinical Coordinator, Task Oriented Communities, Waltham, MA
Established and provided comprehensive rehabilitation services to qiproximatcly 70 mentally ill/ mentally
retarded clients. Hired, directly supervised, and trained a full-time staff of 20 residential coordinators.
Developed community residences for the above clients in three Boston suburbs. Provided emergency
consultation on a 24-hour basis to staff dealing with crisis management in six group homes and one
sheltered workshop. Administrative responsibilities included some financial management, quality
assurance, and other accountability to state authorities.

Faculty, Middlesex Community College, Bedford, MA
Instructor for an introductory group psychotherapy course offered through the Social Work Department.

Senior Social Worker/Assistant Director, Massachusetts Tuberculosis Treatment Center H, a unit of
Middlesex County Hospital, Waltham, MA
Functioned as second in command and chief clinical supervisor for eight interdisciplinary team members,
and implemented a six-month residential program for individuals afflicted with recurring tuberculosis and
alcoholism. Provided group and individual therapy, relaxation training.

Social Worker, Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Out-Patient Psychiatry, Cambridge, MA
Employed in full-time summer position providing out patient counseling to individuals and groups of the
MTT community.

Program Counselor/Supervisor, MassachusetU Institute of Technology, MTT/WeUeslcy CoUege
Upward Bound Program, Cambridge and WeUesley, MA
Major responsibilities consisted of psycho educational counseling of Upward Bound students, supervision
of tutoring staff, teaching, conducting evaluative research for program policy development.



EDUCATIONAL EXPERIENCE

1975 - 1977 Simmons College School of Social Work, Boston, MA
Cambridgc-Somervillc Community Mental Health Program, MSW

1971 -1975 Clark University, Worcester, MA. Received Bachelor of Arts Degree in Psychology

LICENSES AND CERTIFICATIONS

1979 Licensed Real Estate Broker ~ Massachusetts

1989 Academy of Certified Social Workers - NASW

1990 Licensed Independent Clinical Social Worker • Massachusetts

1994 State of New Hampshire Certified Clinical Social Woricer, MA LICSW

PLACEMENTS

1976 - 1977 Cambridge Hospital, In-Patient Psychiatry, Cambridge, MA
Individual, group, and family counseling to hospitalized patients.

1975 - 1976 Massachusetts Institute of Technology, Social Service Department, Cambridge, MA
Similar to above.

FIELD SUPERVISION

1983 - 1984 Antioch/New England Graduate School, Department of Professional Psychology, Keene, NH
1983 - 1984 Rivier College, Department of Psychology, Nashua, NH
1990 -1991 Rivier College, Department of Psychology, Nashua, NH
1978 - 1979 Middlesex Community College, Social Work Associates Program, Bedford, MA

AWARDS

•  High School Valedictorian Award
•  National Institute of Mental Health Traineeship in Social Work
■  University of New Hampshire Community Development 2003 Community Leader of the Year
■  NAM! NH 2007 Annual Award for Systems Change
■  Peter Medoff AIDS Housing Award 2007
•  The Walter J. Dunfey Corporate Fund Award for Excellence in Non Profit Management 2009
•  Business Excellence Award 2010

MEMBERSHIPS

Former Chair, Governor's State Interagency Council on Homelcssness/New Hampshire Policy Academy
Former Chair, Greater Nashua Continuum of Care

National Association of Social Workers

Board Member, Greater Nashua Housing & Development Foundation, Inc.
Board Member, New Futures, Concord, NH

Former Member, Rotary Club, Nashua, NH



Mary Beth LaValley, M.A.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

KEYSTONE HALL/GREATER NASHUA COUNCIL ON ALCOHOUSM 9/16 - present
Acting Vice President, 9/29/2017
Vice President, 5/3/2018
Compliance/Quality Assurance Director

♦ Assume all duties of tlie Vice President that includes developing new and expanding existing services/programs by
networking wiA other agencies. Also fosters relationships in the community, monitors and prepare bud^ts, supervises
and evaluates directors, approves expenses, and other related duties. Responsible for the overall operations of Ae
programs, facilities and staffing.

♦ Monitor all grant funded programs to ensure compliance including tracking and reporting data as specified by the
funder.

♦ Ensure compliance with federal and state laws related to substance abuse treatment programs.
♦ Prepare data and narrative reports and analyze program metrics to determine ways to improve processes and
procedures.
♦ Facilitate Clinical Billing team meetings.
♦ Oversee the CARF reaccreditation process including preparing plans, updating policies and procedures and ensuring
that all programs meet CARF and state licensurc requirements.
♦ Represent the agency on the Nashua/Integrated Delivery Network's full committee meetings.
♦ Develop poKcies and procedures to maximize billing.
♦ Develop and implement plans and protocols for new programs.

EASTER SEALS NH/FARNUM CENTER

Vice President, Substance Abuse Services 7/15 - 9/16
♦ Plan, develop and direct the implementation and on-going evaluation of inpatient and outpadeni programs.
♦ Assist with reports on administrative, financial, professional and programmatic information and statistics.
♦ Develop policies and procedures for substance abuse programs.
♦ Conduct on-site reviews of ail substance abuse programs. Ensure compliance with state and federal regulations as
weU as with CARF (Commission on the Accreditation of Rehabilitation Facilities).
♦ Establish and maintain positive effective relationships with public and private agencies in NH.
♦ Represent Easter Seals NH on the R^on 4 Integ;rated Delivery Network (1115 Mcdicaid Waiver).
♦ Prepare a monthly dashboard for the Board of Directors.
♦ Provide consultation and facilitation for teams involved in strategic initiatives and priority projects.
♦ Assist with the implementation and oversight of budgets.
♦ Oversee the recruitings hiring,-training and-perfotmance of staff including consultants. -

Exemplary Accomplishments:
♦ Secured a |1.67 million infrastructure grant to expand substance abuse treatment services.
♦ Ensured agency programs and facilities were prepared for the CARF re-accreditation survey. Facilities awarded a 3-
year accreditation.

THE MENTAL HEALTH CENTER OF GREATER MANCHESTER, Manchester, NH 12/03 - 7/lS
Director of Strategic Planning, 12/03-9/23/05
Vice President, Strategic Planniug and Business Development; as of 9/25/06

♦ Researched and analyzed potential new business opportunities.

♦ Maintained the agency's dashboard, closely monitored the metrics and developed plans for improvement.

♦ Developed strategic plans for new business development that included marketing plans and financial projections.

♦ Oversaw education, consultation, research and behavioral health staffing contracts.



Mary Beth LaValley, M.A.
2

Supervised and provided direction, leadership and technical assistance to Strategic Planning Department staff.
Attended Strat^c Planning meetings of the Board of Directors, and provided monthly updates.
Developed long-range plans for programs and services and evaluated their effectiveness.
Served on the Executive Committee of the Manchester Sustainable Access Project (MSAP), a planning initiative of
Healthy Manchester Leadership Council as well as on MSAP's Oral Health, Westsidc Neighborhood Health Center
and Behavioral Health Integration Subcommittees. Served as Chairperson for the Oral Health and Behavioral
Health Integration subcommittees.

Represented the agency at community meetings and served on a number of collaborative.
Oversaw the Mental Health First Aid Program including marketing in the community and maintaining data.
Served as the chairperson for the agenc/s Marketing/Public Relations Committee four years.

Exemplary Accomplishments:

♦  Led the Oral Health Committee in efforts to select, purchase and implement an Electronic Dental Record for the
three pattnering agencies: Catholic Medical Center's Poisson Dental Clinic; Easter Seals* Dental Clinic; and the
M^chester Health Department's school-based oral health program. Services expanded from serving kindergarten
children to children at all of the Title IX schools in Manchester and establishing a dental clinic at Dartmouth-
Hitchcock Manchester.

♦ Negotiated and secured behavioral health integration contraas with several area health care organizations
expanding the availability of behavioral health services into community settings. Some of the agencies included
Dartmouth-Hitchcock Manchester, Manchester Community Health Center/Child Health Services, and Easter Seals
NH.

♦  Built an integrated Naturopathic Practice that increased from 4 hours a week to business retjuiring a Naturopathic
Doctor 4 to 5 days a week. Secured a grant from the Itdeson Foundation to assist with marketing the program and
documenting bow to integrate naturopathic mcdidnc in a behavioral health setting.

♦  Served on a statewide committee to develop a model for community mental health centers to serve as health
homes.

♦  Established a satellite mental health clinic at Derry Medical Center.

PRIVATE CONSULTANT summer / fall 2001; summer 2003
Assisted community coalitions to develop strategic plans and to secure grant funds. Prepared grant proposals and
provided technical assistance regarding prevention programming.

LORETTO, Syracuse, NY 10/01 - 08/03
Director of Grant and .Research Development
♦  Researched local, state and national funding sources to meet program and facility needs.
♦  Conducted needs assessments to identify resource needs and developed strategic plans for new programming.
♦  Prepared narrative and financial reports based on statistical information and other project information.
♦  Supervised the grant umtcr and administrative assistant.
♦  Prepared narrative and financial reports for fimders and monitored programs and expenses for compliance.

Exemplary Accomplishments:

♦  Secured over $3.0 Million in funds to enhance training programs, renovate facilities to the needs of the frail
elderly, and to establish enhanced programs for the elderly and their caregivers.

♦  Created and implemented protocols to monitor program progress and ensure grant objectives, financial spend
down and reporting requirements were met.

♦  Established excellent reputation among state and federal agencies, securing opportunities for future funding.

SYRACUSE ONONDAGA DRUG & ALCOHOL ABUSE COMMISSION. Syracuse, NY 11/99 - 08/01



Mary Beth LaValley, M.A.
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Executive Director

♦ De^'elopcd programs, action plans, policies and direction for the promotion and education of substance abuse
prevention and treatment in the City of Syracuse and Onondaga County.

♦ Monitored and evaluated effectiveness of projects.
♦  Served as liaison to local coalitions and chaired committees.
♦ Developed and monitored budgets.
♦ Hired, supervised, trained and evaluated staff.

Exemplary AccompUshments:

♦  Re-energized the Commission by securing members, establishing committees, developing a strat^c plan, and
securing federal grant fimds to hire staff and expand programming.

♦  Secured approximately $275,000 in funding.

SCOTTSDALE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT, Scottsdale, AZ 11/97 - 06/99
Prevention Specialist
Grant funded position through Tide IV Safe and Drug Free Schools.
♦ Oversaw prevention programs at 29 schools.
♦ Monitored and distributed the district's prevention funds, responded to compliance issues, completed reports, and

developed prevention plans.
♦ Managed expmditurc of prevention funds, made recommendations on best practices, and evaluated results.
♦  Assisted in coordinating community responses to prevention by working with coalitions.

Exemplarv Accomplishments:

♦ Developed and implemented training and structure of peer mediation and mentor programs.
♦  Created and established application process used by schools to obtain funds.

WILSON ELEMENTARY SCHOOL DISTRICT, Phoenix, AZ 12/96 -10/97
Prevention Education Coordinator

Temporary position funded through the City of Phoenix Community Impact Initiative Grant.
♦ Developed, implemented and e^'al^lated prevention education programs for high at-risk population.
♦  Coordinated prevention/early intervention activities of internal and external staff.
♦  Ser\'ed as member of Student Assistance Team and the Wilson Community Coalition.
♦  Editor of The Wilson W<^s^ a monthly school newsletter.

Exemplary Accomplishments:

♦  Developed and established peer mediation and mentor programs.
♦  Established and'm'aint^ed Strong linkages with community organizations and businesses.

RAPPAHANNOCK AREA COMMUNITY SERVICES BOARD, Fredericksburg, VA 11/88 -10/96
Director of Preventioo/Public Information

♦  Developed, coordinated and evaluated research-based prevention programs.
♦  Created and maintained budgets and program statistics. Monitored progress and ensured funding source

compliance.
♦  Served as Executive Director of Rappahannock Area Kids on the Block, Inc., a non-profit agency that educated

youth on disabilities, differences and social concerns.
♦ Marketed Kids on the Block program, scheduled performances, and organized fund raising and promotional

events.

♦  Promoted agency through organizing speakers' bureau, brochures, annual reports, quarterly newsletters, and special
events.

Exemplary Accomplishments:



Mary Beth LaValley, M.A.
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Expanded prevention department from one staff person to 14 through conducting a community needs
assessment, developing a long-range plan and securing funds duough grant writing.
Developed and successfully implemented nine prevention programs dealing with substance abuse, drop out,
violence, teen pregnancy, and child abuse and developmental disabilities.

EDUCATION

Texas Woman's University, Denton TX
MA., School Health Education

Franklin Pierce University, Concord, NH
B.S., Business Management

University of Great Falls, Great Falls, MX
A.S., Computer Science

COMMUNITY/VOLUNTEER ACTIVITIES

♦ Volunteer organizer for the Out of the Darkness Walks in Portsmouth for 11 years
♦ Organize an annual Pampered Chef fundraiser to benefit a local animal shelter/rescue organization
♦ Volunteer at church with fundraisers, teaching religious education, greeting, and hospitality and have served
as a Eucharistic Minister



ALEXANDRA K HAMEL, MA MLAOC

sssxr
Koystonv HaO. Nashua. NH

• Oversee the daily operations of residential milieu
•  Supervision of residential staff
■ Maintain oversight of edmisstons, (past scheduTng coordinator)
•  Maintah effective oommunlcation wftft hospitals and government agendes
■ Case manager B8 needed.
•  Prepare monthly reports, maintaining state compliance with federal, state

And tocai regutadorw
•  Screen, train and hire rtew staff
• Emergency On call

Intertm B$entortng CoonflMor 2002
2001-2002Teen Resource Exchange, Derry NH

• Worked primarily with high school students with identified substance abuse
problems, group work, prevention and outreeoh;

• Handled telephorte screening8 and Inttial assessments;
• Collaboratad>^ Strengthening FamfllasF^ram in communfty outreach

^bctfeura Tsecher 1988-2003
Speeist Edueation p9npr9f9$8iOMt 1989-2000
Weare Middle School, Weare, NH

■  Substitute teacher end academic paraprofesslonal for grades 5-6.

Specfa/fdiieatfon Secretary 1984-1896
Sp9clai Bducttkm Aide
John Stark Regional Hi^ School, Weare, NH

• Maintained special education records In oompiiance with state standards.
■ Assistant to Special Education Olrector
«  Scheduled ep^ntments, typed eduoatiortal and psychological evatuations
• Provide academic suppon for students with identified learning disabilities



PWCATON

V/iVonB^, Keene, NH 2008
Mastew <rf Arts: Counwflng Psychotogy-conoontration m addlctton studies

Now H^pshtro Teehnfc9Unstttu1», Concord, NH 2003
Assoctete of Sofenoe Addictions OounsoBng

St Pttmbu^ Junior Coihga. SI PetoreburB, FL 1074
Assoclato of Arts: Genonf Studios towsrds degree In BtiucsUon



^artotte E.Trenhoim. M5W, UC5W

Profetttenai Experience

nashu^nh

s;ssss3rrcxt:2r:rr.ssrr'''i~^.erUlMtlon and luthorteatkm preeessa. concwm. and mana(ln( the innrance

«wenem relatlonthlps throi^hom the Mate and ctttnrminitles the toen»

CoortUnatas all dally dlant rafarral and intake operations.

Efu^^mtm. third party relmburMtneht throufh partldpatioh in ln.ur.nee -rincatlon and aiMhorttetlon

Maintain compllanoe with aH Ucensgre.wtlflcation and other standards

TJ«MW KEAITM CENTER Of GR£ATtR MAWCHESTra MAMruecr.-
ati^ Case Manager, Femily Intensive Tteatment Ttem ^

.  commumty-ind home.bas«I dinlca. services to cHonts. conducting fndMdual and famlty therapy

!  community resources on the behalf of dients and their famtUas

•  '^P®«*''We'«won time oompletlon of Medlcald approved lndlvldoalseivleeoi.i««i««i.r.. . -...a

.  / P""" mwrance ell«nC ricu!""Anen^kly dintad .upervtrtxi, weekly teem Reeling, with depertment paychlatrin and ntonthly naff

WEBSTCR HOUSE
MANCHESTER. NH



As«lttaiitWr«ciqf/TVwrtmtmCaofdln»tor

« home <or v«iou. re.»«. The proipen,', itoeu. h on d«eilopn«ot of phydcel. mcbl. p«»nrt,

•  Executive Olfeetor tofiosure complt&fKe of ttstc mandated rcgulBtions and profram poUdes.

accopiitKa mto uta pfo^rajit.

'"•Cherge ctnnfTuirlet end exR treatment plant (or retldenti In

'  beha^.Vamotlon.1 retpomet In order to reaohre a cltU with a re,IdemMaintaJnad eaja fHet and eompBed annual RBtbtted data of raaJdanti

[  2 WlaljMOffcars and 4 to 5 child care workers daOy, encouraged effective teamwork among iham.revlewl^ editing and signing off on momhV progrea reports and court reports of Sodal
Woi^ to erwure excellence In communication ar>d meeting of program and OHHS standards

A«*»«^'W|^»ttd<wttesut)comrnttteeofB^^

CHIIO AND FAMILY SCRVKXS IHC UAsirue™.
Wnl^ Supervtaor, InteraM Home Based Pnigrwn (IHB)
Provide dim^supervblon and administrative support to per diem IKB famllv therapists.

'  emergeiKV cUnlcal consultation to counsel and teach, offer support.
.  »^nced clmica) skfUs necessary to meet ethlcel end professional standards

^  assessments, care plam and montMy summaries of family^rapist to ensure excellence in oommunlcadon and meeting of agency end DHHS standards
^ verrtVlng end approving per diem payroQ sheets through review of coiUboretirw documenu andsubmlttingformitoeocoonUngforpavment wraur* oocumerw ana

•  orientation of r^emptoywi with regard to record compliance and paperwork

Family Tbereplst, Integrated Home Based Program (tHB) MMejoi
'PP^ch (fircct services to children and families within their home and the eommunitv

wISdhiT fhobPtton >nd Perole Oflteror DCYF ChlW Protective Service Worker of the

O*""" »'«' OHW Protection

for on time completion of wrttten astessmerm, cara plans, monthly iummartes, and court reports
Maintain organlied. precisely documented case files -no coun reppru.

•  C^'aborate with easeworkeri to coordinate service provWon to families
• ^tfwe«khfcnnlcalsupervlilbr^fegijiifst8ffme«IngsandmontWypeersupervltlon
•  Facilitated a weekly ski&s development group for adolescent glrb

ABBOUR OOUflSEUNG SERVICES
Per Diem Staff Therapist LAWRENCE, MA

SOOAoZOOS



cnrndan « . comrnumtv health offae, caring a «,load of W citanti ranging in age from 12 - S5

• ^rformdlagnonlt evaluatlorB of cUent functioning In conducting initial cBnIcal assmmenta
• rarmuiateifidividualcOenttreatmentplam

mtefventlons to enents wtth dlfferli^ DSM-tv

TT»wipta-AdwiioedOWc«llnt»mjWp jMajflai
»cm«io%dof S-Ucoenu nnelnsIn 990 from U-55yoirt oldPerfoTO (fla^iostlc evaluations of dtent functioning hi conductlr^ Initial eflntcaJ assessments

•  Formulale Individual cllanl treatment plans
Pro^hdhrldual, group, fimlly, and other dlnkat and dlagnoctk Interventions to dtents wtth dlMerlng OSM-IV

CEMTHR (Oft EATING DISORDER MANAGEMENT BPMniin uu
Group fadUtatDr-Olntcallnetmililp
Internship at a muttldlsciptlnsrv treatment center for fndrvlduals with EatlJ« Dlsofdert.

Dwioped «'«*<«t«liatedaweeklyEatingDlsorderiupportgfoupforiftm8tts»ttheNH5tatePrl5onfof
women

•  Conducted new cfientblo-psvchosocial Intake assessments
•  Co-fadtHated a weekly community support group for people with Eating Disorders, their famlltes ft friends

HAMPSTEADMOSPfTAl
Mental HeahhConnsalar HAMPSTEAD,WhMI W^couweJor on a 20 bed. secure psychiatrtc unit offering services to youth raiding m age from 6 years (Sdto^
•  Milieu management

•  .nd b«fmen, p|.„.g,« ft..
•  Documented dally progress notes on patlentt
•  therapeutic groign emphasizing behavior modification. as weQ as violerKe prevention
•  Assisted patients In enhancing their social sklDs and self esteem
•  Educated and reinforced effective copb^sklDs

iACKSOffVIUtNe

ai'nt.w.r.prim.rilvchlldrenwfth.utlsm.wvtees outlined In service egreeinent, ettendlng suffmeeUngs end tnlning
Submitted daily progress notes, mamtalned communication with cardcsl director and case manager.
•  UtUlz^materiels end eetMties to assist In adilevlng outcomes outilnad In service plan
•  Assisted cBems and family In dally routine to enhance capablCtles and development
•  Enga^ In role playing and redirection to Improve social and verbal sklHt

manctonh
tSftS-1997



^utt op^l'^ volunteer to serve as Guardian ad Utem for neglected and abused chndren In tlie sot. of

coTt^^lJI""*™"'*" nundseinant, court documentadoa and liaison between
• ^'^■nadaocurateandthoroughdoaanentatlonforttiecourtandstate
•  ̂'^wWwdcofnmunlcaiten between court, fimlly, attorneys, fttte,tndCASA
•  aitldpated in media actMtles to enhance public swareness and vohmteertsm

Edutttton
UNlVERSnY Of NEW HAIMPSHIRE

Masters In Sodal Work
Bachelor of Arts Degree In Psychology

NEW HAMPSHIRE TRHNtCAL INSTTTUTE
Associate of Sclance Degree In Accounting

MANCHESTER, NH

CONCORD NH

^u^l^*^" O" to"' vffectlng youth and the mental health

Professional Associations
National Assodatlon of Sodal Wcrkea - member since 2003
NH Disaster Behavioral Health Itasponsa Team (OBHRTl - team member since 2008



J aime Nicole Gormley

Educatton

Prateiloatl

BodtlWork
Expcriesct

Muter of Art* fai Sodd Wofb
2008 UnivenityofNewHaaqMhim MmdKitcr.NH
•  3^ Qmmlalive OPA

Baddor of In F^ydwlosf w/mlw te jBkBoi^2003 WottemNewEDSltodCoIkvB Spda«field.MA
•  3.6SOiinalitivB OPA, Dean* list all f^T' pifrt
• ̂ Caii National Honor Society and Moctar Board KstionftlHosor Society

Uooicd Indqwate CHaiiaU Soc^
Master Uoensed Aloobd and Dnig Catmaelor-January 14,2010
Difoiitw of BfridrattalSTviea*-Kay*tniiiinflO
Nashaa, NH - October 2017-present
• Manage* the totolopeeadon ofReaidentid program*
•  Supervise 30 SiqiportStafftad 6 clinical ftaffmBBbctt
•  PtovidesnpervidoatoaUeoiployeeBOoaweektybBtis

•  nooda and cstabHdics position roquircmcnta per regulatory

• Maintain oom^ianoc with all lioensurc,certifioation and other Btaadarfs.
•  Saee^^eidropervisecxiBtlagaBdnewstafftodovdopaDdbnfldmeflfective

orgarnzBtioo

OotpstlcDt CoordiBatoi^ Kcyitone Hall
Nufana, NH* Novctpber 3016-October 2017
•  individaal and co-ooouiring oounsding to indhidQals
•  (^omplcCeLADCevahiationt and Adah Intake AiMsiiDcnts
•  Pro^ clinical oiperviilon to outpatient staffaodlADC eligible staff
• Verify ittsurtnoes end ivvloor bilU^ to insurance BDAS
• Oversee progcasunatk policies end procedures
•  Comply with CARP requireroenia with chart audils aid aafctyevBcuaioni
• Oversee and complete SBIRTpfoccdnresfcr Safe Station ciicnta

Patttc^mte in fonuns to educate and advocate far Substance Use



Ctoidacted home vistta on chfldren in flic stales care to support foster
St^per%d8ed visits between in cere children and biolo^cel piw«mtB



Patricia A. Robitaille, CPA TEL:

PROFILE

•  18 years experience in accounting/financial • Training experience
•  Management experience • Knowledge of multiple computer programs
•  Diversified industr)' exposure • Excellent client rapport

•  Counselor and mentor • Tax preparation experience

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

June 2009 - Present Vice President of Finance Harbor Homes, Inc.

Responsible for the finances of 9 related non-profit entities with revenues in excess S22M

Direcdy responsible for budgeting, planning, cash management, grants and contracts falling
under the business/accounting office

Reviews and analyzes the monthly, quarterly and annual financial reports
Analyzes results of cash flows, budget expenditures and grant restrictions
Assists the President/CEO with financial planning and capital projects
Responsible for the annual financial and retirement audits of all related entities
Reviews Federal 990 tax returns and state returns

Set up web based electronic timesheets
Implemented the conversion and installation of accounting and HR softvi'are
Prepares and reviews 941 quarterly returns, state unemployment returns
Oversees worker's compensation renewals, audit preparations, safety controls
Responsible for coordinating, financing of two S6M capital construction

Jan. 2007 - Oct. 2008 Audit Manager Ernst Young IXP, Manchester, NH

• Managed audits of private corporations with revenues up to $200 million

•  Assisted as manager of audits for public corporations vAth revenues up to $400 million

•  Reviewed and assisted preparation of financial statements, lOQ quarterly filings and lOK annual
filings

•  Analyzed and reviewed internal control under Section 404 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act

•  Prepared management comments in conjunction with material weakness or significant
deficiencies

Jun. 1997 - Jan. 2007 Audit Supervisor Melanson Heath & Company, P.O., Nashua, NH

•  Super\'ise/train various teams for commercial, not-for-profit, and municipal audits and agreed
upon procedures

•  Audit ser\'iccs include balance sheet reconciliation including inventor)' control

•  Preparation and presentation of financial statements

•  Preparation of management comment letters for internal qualit)' improvement

•  Assist clients with all aspects of accounting



•  Preparation of budgets and cash forecasting

•  Consulting ser\'iccs to clients including maximization of profits

•  Extensive corporate tax preparation experience

1993 - 1997 Accounting/0£Gce Manager Hammar Hardware Company, Nashua, NH

■ Management of a five-person staff

■ Oversaw accounts receivable, accounts payable and general ledger reconciliation

■ Responsible for inventor)' management, preparation for year-end audit and collaboration with
external auditors

■ Prepared monthly internal financial statements

■ Responsible for payroll including quarterlies and year-end reporting

EDUCATION

1988-1991 Rivier College, Nashua, NH — Bachelor of Science, Accounting

OTHER ACHIEVEMENTS

Licensed Certified Public Accountant in the State of New Hampshire
Member of the New Hampshire Societ)' of Certified Public Accountants
Member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants

SOFTWARE EXPERIENCE

Excel, Word, PowerPoint, Pro-Fx Tax software, Pro-Fx Trial balance software, QuickBooks,
Peachtree, T-Value, various auditing software programs, Sage Non-profit Accounting software. Sage
MAS 90 accounting software.



Greater Nashaa CoudcU od Alcoholism

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid fix)m Amount Paid from

this Contract this Contract

Mary Beth LaValley VP of Operations $125,000 0% $0

Alexandra Hamel Director of Programs $73,500 0% $0

Charlotte Trenholm Director of Intake Services $75,000 0% $0

Jaime Gormley Director of Residential Services $77,250 0% $0"
Peter Kelleher President and CEO $338,146 0% $0
Patricia Robitaille Chief Financial Officer $150,000 0% $0
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Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissiooer

Christine M. Tappan
Associate Commissionei

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERAHGES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF FAMIL Y ASSISTANCE

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 08S01-8867
603-271-9474 1-800-85^345 Ext. 9474

FAX: 603-271-4687 TDD Access: 1-800-736-2964 www.dhhs.nh.gov

June 29, 2018

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House
Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to exercise a retroactive
renewal option to the sole source agreement with Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism,
Vendor #166574-8001, 615 Amherst St. Nashua, NH 03063, for the provision of substance
use disorder treatment services, residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound
services to pregnant and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use disorders,
have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level, and are homeless, or at risk ,of
becoming homeless, by increasing the price limitation by $500,000 from $1,000,000 to
$1,500,000 and by extending, the contract completion date from June 30, 2018 to June 30,
2019, effective retroactive to June 30, 2018, upon Governor and Executive Council
approval.100% Federal Funds

,  This agreement was originally approved by the Governor and Executive Council on
September 7, 2016 (Item #9) and amended on April 19, 2017 (Item #5A) and again on June
21, 2017 (Item #20A).

Funds are available in State Fiscal Year 2019 in the following account with authority to
adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office, without approval
from Governor and Executive Council, if needed and justified.
05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE. DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE. TEMPORARY
ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES

SFY Class Title
Activity
Code

Current
Budget

Increase/
(Decrease)

Modified
Budget

2017 502-
500891

Payments to
Providers 45057500 $500,000 $0 $500,000

2018 502-
500891

Payments to
Providers

45057500 $500,000 $0 $500,000

2019
502-

500891
Payments to

Providers
45057500 $0 $500,000 $500,000

Total: $1,000,000 $500,000 $1,000,000



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executh/e Council

Page 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

This request is, retroactive to June 30, 2018 because the amendment Is being
submitted after the release of an audit report to allow for the Executive Council to review the
audit report prior to renewing the Agreement, and to add contract monitoring language to
address the audit findings. The original agreement is sole source because the Contractor has
been identified as having the ability and capacity to provide substance use treatment services
to pregnant and parenting women while allowing their child(ren) to remain in the mother's care.

The purpose for this request is to allow the Contractor to continue providing substance
use disorder treatment services, residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound
services to pregnant and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use disorders
and have income at or below 185% of the Federal Poverty Level, and are homeless, or at risk
of becoming homeless. The Department has substantial data that indicates a growing heed
for residential and/or supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who
have substance use disorders and who are currently homeless or at risk of becoming
homeless. Women with substance use disorders who have a child may need low or high
intensity residential treatment.

Utilization patterns and research have shown that women who need housing and have
substance use disorders may not be found eligible for more traditional rapid re-housing
services. Additionally, women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder
issues are less likely to seek help due to concern that seeking help for a substance use
disorder could result in separation from their children.

The first statutory purpose of the TANF program is to provide a safety net for children
so they can continue to be cared for by their own family. The second statutory purpose of the
TANF program is to promote the independence of needy families through work and education.
The vendor will address needs of the adults in their care while assuring appropriate care for
the children in residence. The program that is funded by this contract is uniquely aligned with
the purppses of the TANF program and addresses an urgent need within our community. The
Contractor is providing services that assist families to reduce and remove barriers that are
preventing them from fully participating in the workforce and in the larger community. The
services provide assistance to farnilies to reduce or eliminate dependence on public
assistance, and to secure their ability to provide for their families, while addressing clients'
substance use disorders.

The vendor is providing on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling, and counseling for co-occurring mental health illnesses. Residential treatment will
be based on American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) criteria of Six Dimensions of
Multidimensional Assessment to create a holistic biopsychosocial assessment of an individual
that will be used for service planning and treatment across all services and levels of care. All
services are designed to allow children to remain in the mother's care. Services may include,
but are not limited to: •

• Communication classes

• Anger management classes

•  Coping skills

•  Childbirth education classes

■  • Nurturing parenting classes

•  Lactation services



His Excellency, Governor Chrislopher T. Sununu
end the Honorable Executive Council

Page 3 of 3

• Therapeutic play

• MIndfulness. Spirituality and Life Coaching services

The Department is satisfied with the services provided by this Contractor. The original
agreement established services for one (1) year, and included the option to renew contract
services for up to two (2) additional, years, based upon continued availability of funding,
satisfactory vendor performance, and approval of the Governor and Executive Council!
Amendment #1 exercised one (1) of the two (2) years of renewal. This request, if approved,
exercises the final year of renewal that is available in the contract.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers may not receive the substance use disorder treatment services they need,
and they may not be able to locate housing for themselves and their children.

Area Served: Greater Manchester area.

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children
and Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF ; FAIN # 16NHTANF

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted.

Christine M. Tappan
Associate Commissioner

Approved by: I / /
JOTey A. Meyers
Commissioner

TTjtf Department of Health and Human Sen^jces'Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health .and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention

and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #3 to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women

with Substance Use Disorders

This 3rd Amendment to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low
Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders Contract (hereinafter
referred to as "Amendment #3") dated this May 2nd of 2018, is by and between the State of
New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Department") and Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (hereinafter referred to as
"the Contractor"), a nonprofit corporation with a place of business at 615 Amherst Street,
Nashua, NH 03063.

WHER^S, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on September 7. 2016 (Item #9) as amended on April 19. 2017 (Item #5A)
and June 21, 2017 (Item #20A), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon
the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain
sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions. Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-1,
Revisions to General Provisions, Paragraph 3. the State may modify the scope ,of work and the
payment schedule of the contract and renew contract services for up to two (2) additional years,
upon written agreement of the parlies and approval of the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to increase the price limitation, extend the completion date and
modify the scope of work to support continued delivery of these services; and

NOW THEREFORE, In consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained In the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows;

1. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.7. Completion Date, to read;

June 30. 2019.

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.8, Price Limitation, to read;

$1,500,000

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
E. Maria Reinemann, Esq., Director of Contracts and Procurement.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read;
603-271-9330.

5. Add Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Subsection 2.11, Paragraph 2.11.4, to
read;

2.11.4 Ensure, if the performance of services involves the
collection, transmission, storage or disclosure of substance
use disorder (SUD) records, information, or data created by a
42 CFR Part 2 provider, that safeguards, including consent

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Amendment #3
SS-2017-DFA-02-OPEND-01 Page 1 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention

and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders

and notices required by 42 CFR Part 2. are provided prior to
any disclosure of Part 2 information.

6. Add Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 6, Contract Compliance, to read:

6. Contract Compliance.

6.1 The Contractor shall provide a corrective action plan to the Department within
thirty (30) days from the date of any audit findings. The Contractor shall ensure
the corrective action plan Includes, at a minimum:

6.1.1 The specific action(s) to be taken to correct each deficiency identified by
the Department.

6.1.2 The specific action(s) to be taken to prevent any future reoccurrence(s) of
each deficiency.

6.1.3The specific action steps and time line for implementing the actions
identified in Subsections 6.1.1 and 6.1.2 (above).

6.1.4A written plan for monitoring actions to ensure the actions identified in
6.1.1 and 6.1,2 (above) are effective.

6.1.5 The frequency and method of reporting progress on Implementation and
effectiveness of the corrective action plan to the Department.

7. Delete Exhibit B. Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment, Section 6.
6. Add Exhibit B-1 Amendment #3 Budget, SPY 2019 Budget.
9. Delete Exhibit 0-1, Revisions to General Provisions in its entirety and replace with:

Exhibit C-1, Revisions to Standard Contract Language.

10. Add Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Amendment
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

Date

^tate of New Hampshire
lent of Health and Human Services

Ch ine appan

Associate Commissioner

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism

Date

Acknowledgement:
State

Name:

County of l^tlkL-y
iared the oin

h on ^1/24^/ ■ before the
bove, 6r sati:

■

o —

undersigned officer, personally appeared the pefson Identified above, 6r satisfactorily proven to
be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this
document in the capacity indicated above.

,, Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace
WILUAM C. MARTIM

Justlod of the Peace <• New Hampshire
My Commission Expires November A, 2020

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism
SS-2017^FA^)2-OPENDmi

Amendment #3

Page 3 of 4



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women
with Substance Use Disorders
The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, Is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

Naifi^ T
Title; /f

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism

SS-2017-DFA^2-OPEND-01
Amendment #3

Page 4 of 4



Bidder/Program Name:

Budget Request Ton

Budget Period:

Exhibit B-1 Amendment #3

SFY 2019 Budget

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
TANF Open Doors

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism

July 1,2018 through June 30, 2019

Entire Contract Term: 7/1/2016-6^30/2019

Current Term: 7/1/2018-6/30/2019

talFI?rografnTGbistr V- '.iy' •" '.: Funded: by" DHHS Gbntract ^

UneJtem.-;*-;.^^;^,.:■^, . ..
Direct*

.Incremental: •. t.-ti

ndirect
[.Fixed;.;

Totel " Diiect *
.. Incremental., j

■'indirect-
Fixed

Total

1. Total Salarv/Waqes $ 139.519.10 $13,951.91 $ 153,471.01 $ 139,519.10 $ 13,951.91 $ 153,471.01
2. Employee Benefits $ 17,480.42 $ 1,748.04 $ 19,228.47 $ 17,480.42 $ 1.748.04 $ 19,228.47
3. Consultants $ - $ - $ - $ _ $ • •$
4. Equipment: $ $ $ $ $ $

Rental $ - $ - $ - $ _ S $
Repair and.Maintenance $ 453.94 $ 45.39 $ 499.33 $ 453.94 $ 45.39 $ 499.33
Purchase/Depreciation $ 2,529.90 $ 252.99 $ 2,782.89 S 2,529.90 $ 252.99 $ 2,782.89

5. Supplies: $ $ - $ - $ . $ S
Educational $ $ 5 $ $ $
Lab $ $ $ $ $ $
Pharmacy $ $ $ $ $ s  •
Medical $ - $ - $ - s _ $ $
Office $ 2,150.71 $ 215.07 S 2,365.78 $ 2,150.71 $ 215.07 $ 2,365.78

6. Travel $ 2,523.75 $ 252.37 $ 2,776.12 $ 2,523.75 $ 252.37 $ 2,776.12
7. Occupancy $ 14,699.43 $ 1,469.94 $ 16,169.38 $ 14,699.43 $ 1,469.94 $ 16,169.38
8. Current Expenses $ - $ - $ - $ - $ $

Telephone $ 354.71 $ 35.47 $ 390.18 $ 354.71 $ 35.47 $ 390.18
Postage $ - $ - $ - $ _ $ $
Subscriptions $ $ $ $ $ $
Audit and Legal $ $ $ $ $ s
Insurance $ $ $ $ $ $
Board Expenses $ - $ - $ - $ - $ $

9. Softvrare $ 6,000.00 $ 600.00 $ 6,600.00 s 6,000.00 $ 600.00 s 6,600.00
10. Client Transportation $ 6.616.91 $ 661.69 $ 7,278.60 s 6,616.91 $ 661.69 $ 7,278.60
11. Staff Education and Training $ 223.81 $ 22.38 $ 246.19 s 223.81 $ 22.38 $ 246.19
12. Client Assistance $ 202,688.66 $ 20.268.87 $ 222.957.53 $ 202.668.66 $ 20.268.87 $ 222,957.53
13. Child Care Cost $ 59,304.11 $ 5.930.41 $ 65.234.52 $ 59,304.11 s 5,930.41 $ 65,234.52

Indirect As A % of Direct (10%) $ - $ - s $
TOTAL $ - $ - $ - $ - $ $ .

$ 454.545.45 $ 45,454.55 $

(It
o
p

o
o
p

o
o

$ 454,545.45 $ 45,454.55 $ 500.000.00
10%

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism
SS-2017-DFA-02-Opend-01
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C-1

7^^

HEViSiONS TO STANDARD CONTRACT LANGUAGE

1. Revisions to Form P-37, General Provisions

1.1. Section 4. Conditional Nature of Aoreemenl. is replaced as follows;

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the State
hereunder, Including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds,
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or othenwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided In Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or In part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of appropriated or available funds, in
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever.
The State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or
modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or
account Into the Account(s) Identified in block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account
Number, or any other account in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

1.2. Section 10. Termination, is amended by adding the following language:

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the Slate, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State Is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Contractor shall, vsrtthin 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the Stale a Transition Plan for services under the
Agreement, Including but not limited to. Identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving services under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
Information to support the Transition Plan Including, but not limited to, any Information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State
as requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement. Including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transitloned to having services delivered by another
entity Including contracted providers or the Slate, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services In the Transltlon Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notifying clients and other affected Individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall Include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as described above.

2. Revisions to Standard Exhibits

2.1. Delete Exhibit C. Special Provisions. Section 9, Audit, and replace with:

9. Audit

9.1 Audit The Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department vwthin nine months
after the close of the contractor's fiscal year. The audit shall be conducted In accordance
with the single audit requirements found In 2 CFR Part 200, Subpart F of the Uniform
Administrative Requirements. Cost Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,
when all of the following criteria apply:

Greater Nashua Council on Alcohotlsm ExhUI C*1
SS-2017-DFA-02-Operx]-01 Revisions/Exceptions to Standard Contract Language Corttractor initials

cu«HHSoaiMie Page 1 of 2 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C.1

9.1.1 Department determines the contractor is a subreclplent pursuant to 2 CFR 200.300;

9.1.2 Contractor is a non-federal entity pursuant to 2 CFR §200.69, which is defined as a
state, local government, Indian trtoe, or institution of higher education, or nonprofit
organization that carries out a federal avrard as a recipient or subrecipient; and

9.1.3 Contractor expends $750,000 or more of federal funds during the contractor's fiscal
year.

9.2 Audit Exemption: The Contractor shall be exempt from the audit requirements of Section
9.1 if, during a single fiscal year, the contractor is not determined to be a subrecipient
pursuant to 2 CFR 200.300 and cumulatively receives less than $100,000 of total funds,
regardless of source of funds, from the Department through this contract and other
contracts. ^

9.3 Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder,
the Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of
their designated representatives shall have access to ail reports and records maintained
pursuant to the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and transcripts.

:  -.v Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the
Contract, it Is understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held
liable for any state or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the Department, all
payments made under the Contract to v^ich exception has been taken or which have
been disallowed because of such an exception.

The Department has determined that the Contractor is a subrecipient for the purposes of this
contract. The Department reserves the right to withhold payment if the agency does not submit a
completed A-133 audit within nine (9) months of the close of the Contractor's 2017 fiscal year.

3. Renewal

3.1. The Department reserves the right to extend this agreement for up to two (2) additional years,
contingent upon satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, written agreement of the
parties and approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism Exhibit C-1
SS-2017-DFA-02-Opend-01 Revisions/Exceptions to Standard Contract Language Contractor InHJats
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Deftnitions

The following terms may be reflected and have the described meaning in this document:

1. "Breach" means , the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpose have access or potential access to personally Identifiable
Information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information, ° Breach" shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach" in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations.

2. "Computer Security Incident" shall have the same meaning "Computer Security
Incident" in section two (2) of NtST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. "Confidential Information" or. "Confidential Data" means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and personal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information.

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential information.

4. "End User" means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. "Incident" means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which Includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or storage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. "Open Wireless Network" means, any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire's Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a- protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. "Personal Information" (or "PI") means Information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's Identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or Identifying Information which Is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. "Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. "Protected Health Information" (or "PHI") has the same meaning as provided In the
definition of "Protected Health Information"'in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. "Security R_ule' shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subparl C. and amendments
thereto.

12. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that fenders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized 'individuals and is
developed or endorsed.by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR

A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Infonnation
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response to a

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K ContmctorInitials
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New Hampshfre Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it Is required tiy law, In response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions,over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI In violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terrhs of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption. If End User Is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable In cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User rriay only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such Information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be

.  secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via certified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named Individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User Is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

OHMS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
Installed on the End User's mobile devlce(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol (SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User Is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent Inappropriate disclosure of
Information. SFTP folders and sut>-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletlon cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of Information.

III. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contractor will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form It may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
Slates. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the Implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are In
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential Infonnatlon for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for Its End
• Users In support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The' Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure locafion and identified In section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anii-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The environment, as a
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures Its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
Infrastructure.

6. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential information on Its systems (or Its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitlzation, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NISI Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitlzation, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide vrrltten certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include ail details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

IV. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services.

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidential information throughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, storage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS Information Security Requirements

3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate- authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential Information
where applicable.

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can Impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be suthcontracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, Including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements vrill be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103. the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and Is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
^  Management Sun/ey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and

Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and- vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor vw'll not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent Is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to Investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from

V4.Lasi update 04.04.2018 ExtiibltK Contractor Initials
DHHS Information

Security Requiremertts
Page 6 of 9 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

DHHS information Security Requirements

the breach, Including but not limited to: credit monitoring services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of PI and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b). HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire. Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https:/Avww.nh.gov/doit/vendor/index.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guidelines, standards, and
procurement Information relating to vendors.

14. Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer, and
additional email addresses provided in this section, of any security breach within two
(2) hours of the time that the Contractor learns of its occurrence. This Includes a
confidential information breach, computer security incident, or suspected breach
which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect to the
State of New Hampshire network.

15. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this

Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes Identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at ail times.

c. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFI are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by emaii addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 EidibltK Contractor Initials.
□HHS Information

Security Requirements / /n /r/,^
Paoe7offl ' Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit K

OHMS Information Security Requirements

e. limit disclosure of the Confidential Information to the extent permitted by law.

f. Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
Identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that Is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, Including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable Information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or wtien
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other Instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
\  shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.

This applies to credentials used to access'the site directly or Indirectly through
a third party application.

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable, laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
Is disposed of In accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

■  The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer, Information Security Office and
Program Manager of any Security Incidents and Breaches within two (2) hours of the
time that the Contractor learns of their occurrence.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches Involving PHI in
accordance with the agency's documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and In accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding. Contractor's compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures.
Contractor's procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is Involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required In this Exhibit or P-37;

4. identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and

V4. Usl update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
Page 8 of 9 Date
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Exhibit K

DHHS information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach notification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation
measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate PI must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-0:20.

VI. PERSONS TO CONTACT

A. DHHS contact for Data Management or Data Exchange issues:

DHHSinformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS contacts for Privacy issues:

DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov /

C. DHHS contact for information Security Issues:

DHHSInformatlonSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

D. DHHS contact for Breach notifications:

DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov

DHHSPrivacy.Officer@dhhs.nh.gov

V4. Last update 04.04.2018 Exhibit K Contractorlnltlafs
DHHS Information

Security Requirements
Page 9 of 9 Date



JetCrey A. Meyers
Commissiooer

Terry R. Smith
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF human SERVICES

DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE

129 PLEASANT STREET. CONCORD. KH 03301.3867
603.271.9474 1.800.8&2.934& Ext. 9474

FAX: 603.271..4637 TDD AcMts: 1.800.73S.2964 www.dfahs.nh.gov

Junes, 2017

t}U

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to amend sole source
agreements with the vendors listed below, for the provision of substance use disorder
treatment services, residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to
pregnant and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use disorders; have
income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and are homeless, or at risk of becoming
homeless in Stratford County, by increasing the price limitation by $1,481,326 from
$1,481,326 to $2,962,652 effective July 1, 2017 or upon Governor and Executive Council
approval, whichever is later, through June 30, 2018. These agreements were originally
approved by the Governor and Executive Council on August 3, 2016 (Late Item A), September
7, 2016 (ltem#9), and September 21, 2016 (ltem#11) and were subsequently amended on
ApriM9, 2017 (Item#6A). 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name Address - Vendor #
Current

Budpet

Increase/

(Decrease)

New

Budpet
Greater Nashua

Council on

Alcoholism

615 Amherst St.

Nashua. NH 03063
166574-
8001

$500,000 $500,000 $1,000,000

Hope on Haven
Hill, Inc.

326 Rochester Hill Rd.

Rochester, NH 03867
275119-

B001
$482,119 $482,119 $964,238

Families in

Transition
■ 122 Market St.

Manchester, NH 03101
157730-

8001
$499,207 $499,207 $998,414

Total: $1,481,326 $1,481,326 $2,962,652

Funds are anticipated to be available in SFY 2018, upon the availability and continued
appropriation of funds In the future operating budgets, with authority to adjust amounts within
the price limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget
Office if needed and justified, without approval from Governor and Executive Council.
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in residence. The program being funded by this contract is uniquely aligned with the purposes
of the TANF program and addresses an urgent need within our community. The vendors are
providing services that assist families with reducing and removing barriers that are preventing
them from fully participating in the workforce and in the larger community. The services
support families in ending their dependence on public assistance, and securing their ability to
provide for their families, while addressing participants' substance use disorders.

The vendors are providing on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling, and counseling for co-occurring mental health illnesses. Residential treatment will
be based on American Society of Addiction Medicine (ASAM) criteria of Six Dimensions of
Multidimensional Assessment to create a holistic biopsychosocial assessment of an Individual
that will be used for service planning and treatment across all services and levels of care. All
services are designed to allow children to remain in the mother's care. Services may include,
but are not limited to:

• Communication classes

• Anger management classes

•  Coping skills

• Childbirth education classes

•  Nurturing parenting classes

•  Lactation services

•  Therapeutic play

• Mindfulness. Spirituality and Life Coaching services

The Department is satisfied with the services provided by these vendors. The original
agreements call for the provision of these services for one (1) year, with the option to renew
for up to two (2) additional years, based upon continued availability of funding, satisfactory
vendor performance, and approval of the Governor and Executive Council. The previous
amendment renewed Uie contract for one (1) year, leaving one (1) additional year of renewal.

As stated in Exhibit A, notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the
contrary, no services shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be
liable for any payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and funds
encumbered for the SFY 201&-2019 biennia.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers and their young children not receive the substance use disorder treatment
services they need.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services. Administration for Children
and Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families. TANF ; FAIN # 16NHTANF



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment #2 to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women

with Substance Use Disorders Contract

This 2nd Amendment to the OPEN DOORS — Homelessness Prevention and Supports
for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders
Contract (hereinafter referred to as "Amendment #2") dated this May 10th of 2017, is by
and between the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services
(hereinafter referred to as the "State" or "Department") and Greater Nashua Council on
Alcoholism (hereinafter referred to as "the Contractor"), a nonprofit company with a
place of business at 615 Amherst Street, Nashua, NH 03063.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on September 7, 2016 (ltem#9) and amended by an agreement
approved by the Governor and Executive Council on April 19, 2017 (ltem#5A). the
Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms and conditions
specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain sums specified;
and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of
work, payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to General Provisions, Paragraph 18, the State may amend the
contract by written agreement of the parties and approval of the Governor and
Executive council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to Increase the price limitation without extending the
completion date of the contract; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and
conditions contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to
amend the contract as follows:

1. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.8, to increase Price Limitation by $500,000 from
$500,000 to read: $1,000,000

CM>1HS/ia03t3
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This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Govemor and Executive Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

6(iln
Date Terry SmitTi

Director

Contractor Name;

<hiin
Date

Title;

Acknowledgement:
State of County of ti. on
before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person idenbfled above, or
satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name Is signed above, and acknowledged
that s/he executed this document in the capacity Indicated above.
Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

WILUAM C. MARTIN
Justiefl of the Peaoo - New Hampshire
My Commission Expires November 4,2020

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

CM3HK/100713
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

t.Mn
t  Name:

Title:

Date

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and
Council of the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: fdate of
meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

CAAms/ioosia
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Jeffrey A. Mcyera
Commissioner

Terry K. Sniitb
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE

119 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857
603-371-9474 1-800-661-334S Ext 9474

hAX^ 603-271-4637 TUD Access: 1-800-73^1964 www.diibs.iih.gov

February 23, 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord. NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Heaith and Human Services to exercise a no-cost renewal option
for sole source agreements with the vendors listed below, for the provision of substance use disorder
treatment services, residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to pregnant and/or
parenting women who are experiencing substance use disorders; have Income at or below the 185%
Federal Poverty Level; and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless in Strafford County,
effective upon Governor and Executive Council approval from July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2018.
This Is a no-cost amendment. These agreements were originally approved by the Governor and
Executive Council on August 3. 2016 (Late Item A), September 7, 2016 (Item #9). and September 21
2016(ltem#11). 100% Federal Funds.

Vendor Name Address Vendor # Current

Budqet
Greater Nashua Council on

Alcoholism
615 Amherst St.

Nashua, NH 03063
166574-B001 $500,000

Hope on Haven Hill, Inc. 326 Rochester Hill Rd.
Rochester. NH 03867

275119-B001 $482,119

Families In Transition 122 Market St.
Manchester. NH 03101

157730-B001 $499,207 .

Total: $1,481,326

Funds to support Ihls request are available in the following account for State Fiscal Year 2017.

05-95-45-450010-6146 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUfVIAN SVS.
HHS: TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY ASSISTANCE
TO NEEDY FAMILIES

State Fiscal Year Class Title Activity Code Amount

2017 502-500891 Payments to Providers 45057500 $1,481,326

Total; $1,481,326

lC'

EXPLANATION

The purpose for this request Is renew services for an additional year at no additional cost In
order to provide substance use disorder treatmeni services; residential and/or supportive housing; and
wraparound services to pregnant and/or parenting women who are experiencing substance use
disorders; have Income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and are homeless, or at risk of
becoming homeless. The original agreements were sole source because these vendors have been
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Executive Council. This amendment shall renew the contract for one (1) year, leaving one (1)
additional year of renewal. '

As stated in Exhibit A, notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the contrary, no
services shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any payments
for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an appropriation for these services has
been received from the state legislature and funds encumbered for the SPY 2018-2019 biennia.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers and their young children not receive the substance use disorder treatment services
they need.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services, Administration for Children and
Families, Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF ; FAIN # 16NHTANF

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be requested
to support this program.'

Respectfully submitted,

Terry
Director

/

'hllCA--
Approved by: \ ) ( '

Jeffrey a!frey a: Meyers
Commissioner

The Department ofHealth and Human Services' Mission is toJoin communities and families
in providing- opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.
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State of New Hampshire -
Department of Health and Human Services

Amendment U1 to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention
and Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women

with Substance Use Disorders Contract

This 1st Amendment to the OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for Low
Income Prcghant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders Contract (hereinafter
referred to as "Amendment #1") dated this February 15th of 2017, is by and between the State of
New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the
"State" or "Department") and Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (hereinafter referred to as
"the Contractor"), a nonprofit company with a place of business at 615 Amherst Street, Nashua,
NH 03063.

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement (the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive
Council on September 7,2016 (#9), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon
the terms and conditions specified in the Contract as amended and in consideration of certain
sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work,
payment schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the General Provisions, Paragraph 18 and Exhibit C-l, Paragraph 3, the
State may at its sole discretion, renew the contract by written agreement of the parties; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement without an increase in the
price limitation; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree as follows:

1. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.7, to read June 30,2018.

2. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.9, to read Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director of
Contracts and Procurement.

3. Amend Form P-37, Block 1.10 to read 603-271-9246.

4. Amend Exhibit A to add the following line to Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in Section 1,
Provisions Applicable to All Services:

I. II Notwithstanding any other provision of the Contract to the.contrary, no services
shall continue after June 30, 2017, and the Department shall not be liable for any
payments for services provided after June 30, 2017, unless and until an
appropriation for these services has been received from the state legislature and
finds encumbered for the SFY 2018-2019 biennia.

CA/OHHSnO031)
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This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council
approval.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below.

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services

m/keH 9 -zu/ 7
Date Terry S

Director

Contractor Name: Ojoolm A/cthJtrh*

Date NlmeiftK^ lkll>kcr-
Tille: f ^

Sttte°o"'!3iBL__. County of ^La Ii^..
before the undersigned officer, personally appeared tt)ederson identified abdve, or
satisfactorily proven to be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged
that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated above.
Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Name and»TiUe V Ntfefy or Justice of the^P^ce

Oj>«£S
(u: =

5  tf.' ;

CA^KHSn0O2t3
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The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form,
substance, and execution.

OFFICE OF. THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

L

h n
Date 1

1
Name;

Title:

I hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approvea by the Governor and
Council of the State of New Harhpshire at the Meeting on: (date of
meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:

Title:

CMOHHS/im213



Jeffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

Terry R. Smith
Director

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

OFFICE OF. HUMAN SERVICES

DIVISION OF FAMIL Y ASSISTANCE

129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03501-38S7
603-271-9474 1-800-^2-3346 Ext 9474

FAX: 603-271-4637 TOO Access: 1-800-735-2964 www.dhhs.tih.cov

Augusts, 2016

Her Excellency, Governor Margaret Wood Hassan
and the Honorable Executive Council

State House

Concord. NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services to enter into a sole source
agreement with Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism (Vendor #166574-6001), 615 Amherst
Street, Nashua, NH 03063 for the provision of substance use disorder treatment services,
residential and/or supportive housing, and wraparound services to pregnant and/or parenting^
women who are experiencing substance use disorders; have income at or below the 185%
Federal Poverty Level; and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless in Slrafford County
in an amount not to exceed $500,000, effective upon Governor and Executive Council through
June 30, 2017. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds to support this request are available in the following account for State Fiscal
Year 2017.

05-95-4S450010-6148 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVS, HHS; TRANSITIONAL ASSISTANCE, DIV OF FAMILY ASSISTANCE, TEMPORARY
ASSISTANCE TO NEEDY FAMILIES

State Fiscal Year Class Title Activity Code Amount

2017 502-500891 Payments to Providers 45057500 $500,000

Total: $500,000

EXPLANATION

This agreement is sole source because this vendor is one (1) of three (3) vendors,
statewide, that has been identified as having the ability and capacity to provide substance use
treatment services to pregnant and parenting women while allowing the child(ren) to remain in
the mother's care. The Department will request Governor and Executive Council approval of
the other agreement once received from the vendor.

The purpose for this request is to provide substance use'disorder treatment services;
residential and/or supportive housing; and wraparound services to pregnant and/or parenting
women who are experiencing substance use disorders; have income at or below the 185%
Federal Poverty Level; and are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless.
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The Department has substantial data that indicates a growing need for residential
and/or supportive housing services for pregnant and/or parenting women who have substance
use disorders and who are currently homeless or at risk of becoming homeless. Women with
substance use disorders who have a child may need low or high intensity residential
treatment. However, these women may not seek assistance due to their fear of being
separated from their children.

Utilization patterns and research have shown that women needing housing may not be
found eligible for more traditional rapid rehousing services due to substance use disorders.
Additionally, women with children who are struggling with substance use disorder issues are
less likely to seek help due to individual concerns that an admission to needing help could
result in separation from their children.

TANF funds were transferred in the 2017 budget to address the addiction crisis
currently facing the State. The Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism allows mothers to
remain with their children while they seek treatment for substance use disorders through the
Cynthia Day program. The first statutory purpose of the TANF program is to provide a safety
net for children so they can continue to be cared for by their own family. The^second statutory
purpose of the TANF program is to promote the independence of needy families through work,
and education. The Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism will address those needs,of the
adults in their care while assuring appropriate care for the children In residence. The program
being funded by this contract is uniquely aligned with the purposes of the TANF program and
addresses an urgent need within the community. The vendor will provide services that assist
families with reducing and removing barriers that are preventing them from fully participating in
the workforce and in the larger community. The services will support families in ending their
dependence on public assistance, and securing their ability to provide for their families, while
addressing participants' substance use disorders.

This agreement includes language in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to. Standard Provisions,
Paragraph 3, that reserves the Department option to renew services for up to two additional
years subject to the continued availability of ̂ nds, satisfactory performance of services and

. approval by the Governor and Executive Council.

The vendor will provide on-site case management, intensive group and individual
counseling and counseling for co-occurring mental health illnesses. Residential treatment will
be based on ASAM criteria of Six Dimensions of Multidimensional Assessment to create a
holistic biopsychosocial assessment of an individual that will be used for service planning and
treatment across all services and levels of care. Services may include, but are not limited to:

• Communication classes

• Anger management classes
• Coping skills
• Childbirth education classes

•  Nurturing parenting classes
•  Lactation services

• Therapeutic play
• Mindfulness, Spirituality and Life Coaching services

All services are designed to allow children to remain in the mother's care. This vendor
is a newly established 24-hour Residential Recovery Facility that specializes in services for
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pregnant women with substance use disorders, their children up to age five (5) and their
newboms for up to one year postpartum.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, pregnant and/or
parenting mothers and their young children not receive the substance use disorder treatment
services they need.

Area Served: Statewide

Source of Funds: 100% Federal Funds Catalogue of Federal and Domestic Assistance
(CFDA#93.558) U.S. Department of Health & Human Services. Administration for Children
and Families. Temporary Assistance for Needy Families. TANF ; FAIN # 16NHTANF

In the.event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Respectfully su^itted,

I. Smith'

Director

Approved by:
frey A. Meyers

Commissioner

TAe Depsrtaient ofHealth and Human Services' Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



FORM NUMBaiP-37 (version 5/8/15)
Subject* OPEN DCX)RS Homelessness Prevention & Supports for Low Income Pregnant and Pafcnhno Women with Suh«b>T.y^ t tc^
DisordcTB fSS-20l7.DFA-01^nH^n

Notice: This agreemeDt and all of its attachments shall become public upon submission to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any taformalion that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified to the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract.

AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. IDENnnCATIGN.

I.l State Agency Name
Department of Health and Human Services

1.2 State Agency Address
129 Pleasant Street

Concord, NH 03301-3857

13 Contractor Name

Greater Nashua Council on Alcoholism.
1.4 Contractor Address

615 Amherst Street

Nashua, NH 03063

1.5 Contractor Phone

Number

(603) 305-6586

1.6 Account Number
05-9j-45-4S0010-6146

1.7 Completion Date

June 30,2017

1.8 Price Umitation

$500,000

1.9 Contractiog Officer for State Agency
Eric D. Bonin, Director

1.10 State Agency Tel^hone Number
603-271-9558

1.12 Name wd Title of Contractor Signatory1.11 Contractor-Signature

1.13 Acknowledgement; State of N tf , County of ^ f
On 3l/'V ^^1 ̂ .^'^,bcforethcuDdersigncdofficcr,pcrsonaUyappearcdthepcrsonidentificd.^b\^ti'lV.y)^^,orsalisf&ctorily
proven to be the person >WK)se name is signed In block 1.11, and acknowledged that s/bc cxccut^p^^^CliltlebtjiQJke capacity
indicated in block 1.12. ^
1.13.1 Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

fSeal]

ille 0^1.13.2 NameondTille

1.14 State A

t  { DP«S :

2WS

or Justice of the Peace

WT' Dale: ft/jr/7^
1.15 Name and Title ofState Agency Signatory

1.16 Approval SylBTN-H. Department ofAdministration, Division of Person6e^

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approv^ by (be Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if appHeable)

On:

1.18 Approval by the Govcrnfirud Executive Mmncih (if applicable)

By: On:

Page 1 of 4



2. EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRAGTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PEIRFORMED. The State of New Hampshire^ acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 C'State*'), engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 ("Contractor") to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the attached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated bercio by reference
("Services").

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject to the approval of the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and ail obligations of the panics
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Governor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
l.M ("Effective Date").
3.2 If the Contractor commeDces the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must cbn^lete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.

Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, arc
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no event shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event ofa reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
9ving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event fiinds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT.

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment art identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.
5.2 The payment by tbe State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of udiatever nature incurred by the Contractor in tbe
performance hereof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for tbe Services. The State
shall have no liability to tbe Contractor other than tbe contract
price.

5.3 The State reserves tbe right to offset from any amounts
blbcrwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounts required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through RSA 80:7-c or any other provision of law.
5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall tbe total of all payments autboriied, or actually
made hereunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8.

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 In connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall conqily with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipal authorities
which impose any obligation or duty upon tbe Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communlcate with,,receive information from, and convey
information to the Contractor. In addition, tbe Contractor
shall comply with alt applicable copyrigbt laws.
6.2 During the term of tUs Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action to prevent such discrimination.
6.3 If this Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United States, the Contractor shall coooply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 ("Equal
Employment Opportunity"), as supplemented by tbe
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. Tbe Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of tbe
Contractor's books, records and accounts for the purpose of
Bscertainmg compliance with all rttles, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.
7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide ail
personnel necessary to perform the S^ces. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under iu applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during tbe lam of
this Agreement, and for a period of six (^ months after the
Completioo Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corpoTBtion with whom it is engaged in a combined effort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is a State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or perfotinance of this
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Agreement. This provision shall survive tenniDation of this
Agreement.
7.3 The Contracting Officer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State's representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be.final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.
8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of de&ult hercunder
CEvent of Default"):
8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;
8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 tailure to perfi>nn any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.
8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice ̂ ectfying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser spcdfication of time, thirty (30)
days fiom the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a written notice speciiying the Event
of £)efault and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract pnice
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
^11 never be paid to the Contractor;
8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or
8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedies at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATA/ACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITV/

PRESERVATION.

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all
infbimatloG and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or devcloped by reason of, this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purcha^ with funds providedYor that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.
9J.Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
ch^ter 91'A or other existing law. Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event ofan early tcrminatioo of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver to the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report CTcrmination Report") describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price earned, to -
and including the ̂ te of termination. The fonn, subject
matter, content, and number of copies of the Termioatioa
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Report
described in the attached EXHIBrr A.

/

11. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agrcerncnt the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers' compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIHCATION. The Contractor shaU defend,
indemnify and hold harmless the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the >
Contractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the

sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby
reserved to the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement.

14. INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 con^rehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or properfy damage, in amounts
of not less than S1,000,000per occurrence and S2,000,000
aggregate; and
14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject to subparagr^h 9.2 herein, in ̂  amount not
less than 80% of the whole replac^ent value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagiaph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy fonns and endorsements approved for use in die
State of New Hampshire by the NH. bepartxnent of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licens^ in the State ofNew
Hampshire.
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14.3 The Cootrsctor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a ceitificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement.
Contractor shall also furnish to the Cootractiog Officer
identified in block 1.9, or bis or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all reoewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30) days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals t^reof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificateCs) of
insurance shall contain a clause requiring the insurer to
pronde the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no less than thirty (30) days prior written
notice ofcancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS* COMPENSATION.
15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281 -A
("JVorkers' Compensation").
J5.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements ofNil. RSA chapter 28WA, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintam, payment of Workers' Compensation in
connection with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this AgreemcDt. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer Identified in block 1.9, or bis
or her successor, proof of Workers' Compensation in the
manner described in NJi. RSA chapter 281 -A and any
applicable rcnewal(s) thereof, vdiicb shall be attached and are
incorporated herein preference. The State shall not be
responsible fbr payment of any Workers* Compensation
prenuums or for any other claim or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers'
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services unda this AgreemenL

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Default, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
&ilure to enforce any Event of Default shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all ofthc
provisions hereof upon any fiirtbcr or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contractor.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party berelo to the other party
shall be deemed to have been duly Slivered or given at the
time of mailing by certified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 12 and 1.4, herein.

18. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an mstnimrat in writing signed
by the parties hereto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or disriivge by ̂ e Governor and
Executive Coundl of the State of New Hampshire unless no

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.

This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chosen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no nile of construction shall be ̂plied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed (o confer any such benefit

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
arc for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, arapUty or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. In the event any of the provisions of
this Agreement arc held by a court of competent jurisdiction to
be contrary to any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in-full force and
effecL

>

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes ̂ e entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to Alt Services

1.1. The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legislative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an Impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service priorities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therev/ith.

1.2. The Contractor shall ensure appropriate use of funds consistent wHh the Federally
mandated purposes of the TANF program pursuant to 45 CFR 260.20, which may
Include:

1.2.1. Food, clothing, shelter (rent assistance), utilities, household goods, personal
care Items, for up to four months for an individual family;

1.2.2. Child care and transportation for up to four months for an individual family
unless the parent Is employed In which case services can be extended;

1.2.3. Services such as substance use disorder treatment, counseling, case
management, peer support, job retention and job advancement including
training and education, and other employment-related services that do not
provide basic Income support;

1.2.4. Non-medical services not covered by Medlcaid or private health insurance.

1.3. The Contractor shall provide Substance Use Disorder (SUD) treatment as weil as
either residential housing, supportive housing, and/or housing stabilization services
including wraparound services to TANF eligible pregnant and/or parenting women
who;

1.3.1. Are experiencing substance use disorders;

1.3.2. Have income at or below the 185% Federal Poverty Level; and

1.3.3. Are homeless, or at risk of becoming homeless.

1.4. The Contractor shall keep record of participant eligibility determination, as specified
in Section 1.3.

1.5. The Contractor shall expand current services, provide new beds, or increase
■ services that are currently available. Funds for this project cannot supplant services
currently available.

1.6. The Contractor shall be or become a New Hampshire Medlcaid provider.

1.7. The Contractor shall work, in partnership, with DHHS, specifically DFA, to
review/assist with program processes, service provision, and overall program
outcomes. Contractor shall work In collaboration with DFA to ensure desired progranfi
benchmarks are achieved timely.

1.8. The Contractor shall comply with all relevant state and federal laws which include,
but are not limited to:

Greater Nashua Councfl an Alcoholism Exhibit A Conlracter Inlliab t
ES-2017-DFA-02-OperwW)l

Page 1 of 9 Data. (/



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homeiessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

1.8.1. Requirements governing human subject's research when considering
research, Including research conducted by student Interns, using individuals
served by this contract as subjects.

1.8.2. Informing and receiving the Department's approval prior to initiating any
research involving the subjects or participants related to this contract. The
Department reserves the right, at Its sole discretion, to reject any such
human subject research requests.

1.9. The Contractor shall comply with the Department's Sentinel Event Reporting.
1.10. The Contractor shall use the Web Information Technology System or comparable

system to record all encounter notes, Including, but not limited to, client activity and
client contact within three (3) days following the activity or contact. The Contract
shall; -

1.10.1. Ensure all clierit activity or contact includes, but is not limited to:

1.10.1.1. Screening

1.10.1.2. Feed determination

1.10.1.3. Admission

1.10.1.4.Billing

1.10.1.5. Disenrollment

1.10.1.6. Discharge Data

1.10.2. Ensure all encounter notes track the client's progress with specific treatment
goals and include dinlca} content of the sessions.

2. Scope of Services

2.1. The Contractor shall ensure TANF eligible pregnant and/or parenting women have
access to services that include, but are not limited to:

^  2.1.1. Substance Use Disorder (SUD) Residential Treatment Services.

2.1.2. Outpatient SUD Treatment with Supportive Housing Services, as available.

2.1.3. Outpatient SUD Treatment with Housing Stabilization Services.

2.1.4. Clinical staff to oversee treatment

2.1.5. Access to on- and/or off-site age developmentally appropriate childcare.

2.1.6. Transportation services to and from non-medlcal services.

2.1.7. Wraparound services.

2.1.8. Case management services.
I

2.2. The Contractor shall ensure pregnant and/or parenting women have seamless
access to services that will assist with redudng and removing bam'ers that are
preventing full partidpation in the workforce and in the larger community.

2.3. The Contractor shall ensure services support a Continuum of Care that Indudes
wraparound services that support pregnant and parenting women in working to end
their dependence on public assistance; secure pregnant and parenting women's

Oreatw NasTiuo Council on Alcoholism BditbH A Contrector InHlsIs \ ̂  I
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS — Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A
ability to provide for their families; and address pregnant and parenting women's
substance use disorders.

2.4. The Contractor shall conduct outreach activities that publicize vendor services
available to the population being served, which may include but are not limited to:
2.4.1. Street outreach programs.

2.4.2. Ongoing public service announcements (radio/television).
2.4.3. Regular advertisements in local/regional print media.

2.4.4. Posters placed in targeted areas.

2.4.5. Frequent notification of availability of such SUD treatment and residential
services for pregnant and parenting women and their children) distributed to
the network of:

2.4.5.1. Community based organizations.

2.4.5.2. Health care providers.

2.4.5.3. Social service agencies.

2.4.5.4. Ethnic community based organizations.

2.5. The Contractor shall provide services according to evidence based models and/or
best practices, including Trauma Informed Care, with the , ability to monitor case
management services, which shall Include but is not limited to:

2.5.1. Inftlal intakes.

2.5.2. Clinical evaluations to determine the clients Substance Use Disorder
diagnoses based off the Diagnostic and Statistical Manual of Mental
Disorders (DMS -5). A Clinical Evaluation Is a blopsychosocial evaluation
completed In accordance with Technical Assistance Publication (TAP) 21:
Addiction Counseling Competencies, available at
http:yystore.samhsa.gov/product/TAP-21-AddjGtion-

2.6. The Contractor shall ensure clients have access to and receive the appropriate
ASAM levels of care and services according to their needs based upon the
completed clinical evaluation. Counseling-Compelencles/SMA15-4171. This , may
include, but is not limited to:

2.6.1. In-house, on-stte, overnight substance used disorder (SUD) residential
treatment services In a facility licensed as a residential treatment facility
pursuant to Administrative Rule He-P 807.

2.6.2. Outpatient SUD Treatment Services with Supportive Housing for up to four
(4) months, on or off site with the ability to provide onslte substance use
disorder treatment services. Supportive housing, may include, but is not
limited to, apartments within an apartment complex, group housing, or
shared housing. Funding for Supportive Housing services shall be limited to
4 months based off the TANF regulations around non assistance categories.

2.6.3. Outpatient SUD Treatment Services with Housing Stabilization Services that
allow clients to remain in their homes while receiving scheduled or^site SUD
treatment ser^ces.

Qfeatsr Nashua Council on AlcohoJism Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

2.7. The Contractor shall ensure the basic needs of pregnant and parenting women
receiving services and the basic needs of her child(ren) are met within the first 24
hours of receiving services, on an on-going basis while receiving services and after
being discharged from services, which Include, but are not limited to:

2.7.1. Housing.

2.7.2. Food.

2.7.3. Clothing.

2.7.4. Diapers.

2.7.5. Recovery Support Services

2.8. The Contractor shall admit both women and their children Into treatment services, as
appropriate, allowing the child{ren) to remain In the mother's care. The Contractor
shall ensure:

2.8.1. Safe Sleep environments for Infants aimed at reducing the risk of Sudden
Unexpected Infant Death syndrome, including Sudden Infant Death
Syndrome (SIDS).

2.8.2. Written policies are developed that describe the practices to be used to
promote Safe Sleep, in accordance with recommendations for the American
Academy of Pediatrics (AAP) when Infants are napping or sleeping. For
detailed information on safe sleep refer to
http;//cfoc.nrckids.org/StandardView/3.1.4.1 and
http://pediatrics.aappublications.0rg/content/pediatrics/l 28/5/e1341 .full.pdf.

2.8.3. Developmentaliy appropriate childcare is available to for children, either
through on-site care or through arrangements with an off-site licensed
childcare provider. It is not expected that the on-site facility be licensed but
should follow NAEYC guidelines in regards to developmentaliy appropriate
childcare.

2.8.4. Supports for before and after school care are available for school age
children.

2.8.5. Arrangements are in place that allows children to continue attending school.

2.9. The Contractor shall provide interim services when no appropriate services are
immediately available while managing a waiting list. The Contractor shall:

2.9.1. Provide or refer to interim services until the appropriate level of care
becomes available, at either a contract agency or an altemative provider.
These services shall Include, but are not limited to:

2.9.1.1. At least one 60 minute individual or group outpatient session
provided or offered per week;

2.9.1.2. Recovery support services, as needed by the client;

2.9.1.3. Individual and/or group counseling provided or offered on the
effects of alcohol and other substance use of abuse effects on the

fetus for pregnant woman.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homeiessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

2.9.1.4. Daily calls to the client if an emergent need arises to assess and
respond.

2.9.2. Provide counseling and education about HIV and Tuberculosis (TB), wtilch
shall Include, but not be limited to;

2.9.2.1. The risks of needle sharing.

2.9.2.2. The risks of transmission to sexual partners and Infants.

2.9.2.3. Steps that can be taken to ensure that HIV, HepC and TB
transmission does not occur.

2.9.2.4. Referral to HIV, HepC or TB treatment services. If necessary.

2.9.2.5. Referrals for prenatal care for pregnant women.

2.9.3. Establish a waiting list that includes, but is not limited to;

2.9.3.1. A unique patient Identifier.

2.9.3.2. Dates of requests for admission to treatment.

2.9.3.3. Provision of Interim services and sources of those services.

2.9.3.4. Referrals made for treatment or interim services.

2.9.3.5. Disposition of clients on the waiting list.

2.10. The Contractor shall offer tobacco cessation tools and education to all clients
receiving services. The Contractor shall;

2.10.1. Asses clients for motivation In stopping the use of tobacco products;

2.10.2. Offer resources such as but not limited to the Department's Tobacco
Prevention & Control Program (TPCP) and the certified tobacco cessation
counselors available through the QuKLine; and

2.10.3. Ensure tobacco use, in and of itself, is not used as grounds for discharging
clients from services being provided under this contract.

2.11. The Contractor shall develop substance use disorder treatment plans for all clients
based on clinical evaluation data and must address all ASAkfl (2013) domains. The
Contractor shall:

2.11.1. Update the treatment plans based on any changes in ASAM domain no less
frequently than every four (4) sessions or every four (4) weeks, whichever is
less frequent.

2.11.2. Ensure treatment plan goals, objectives and Interventions are written in
terms that are specific, measurable, attainable, realistic and timely

2.11.3. Ensure treatment plans Include medication assisted treatment, when
appropriate.

2.12. The Contractor shall ensure treatment plans include but are not limited to:

2.12.1. A plan for permanent housing arid recovery services.

Greater Nashua Counct! on Alcoholism Eidilbil A ContrBctor tniUats
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homelessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

2.12.2. Sufficient case management services, which shall include but is not limited
to, linking women with community services within the area In which she will
be permanently housed after receiving treatment services.

2.12.3. Transportation services to ensure that the women and their children have
access to the treatment plan-specific services.

2.12.4. Permanent housing and recovery services, which may Include but are not
limited to:

2.12.4.1. Assistance with enrollment in Medicaid, the New Hampshire Health
Protection Program, or other private Insurance.

2.124.2. Anger management classes.

2.12.4.3. Financial management classes.

2.12.4.4. Communication skills classes.

2.12.4.5. Spiritual support.

2.12.4.6. Health management, Including stress management.

2.12.4.7. Organization and time management classes.

2.12.4.8. Parenting skills classes.

2.12.4.9. Plan to transition clients to the community once discharged.

2.13. The Contractor shall provide case management services vwth fidelity to the TIP 27:
Comprehensive Case Management for Substance Abuse TreatrDcnt
(http://store.samhsa.gov/product/TIP-27-Comprehensive-CasB-Management-for-
Substance-Abuse-Treatment/SMA15-4215) and the ASAM guidelines
(http://www.asam.org/publications/the-asam-criteria/about), which Include, but are
not limited to: '

2.13.1. Life skills coaching.

2.13.2. Employment services.

2.13.3. Referral to community resources.

2.13.4. Housing stability planning and support.

2.13:5. Peer to peer counseling

2.13.6. Individual or group substance use services delivered by providers working
within their scope of practice.

2.13.7. Non clinical services such as, but not limited to, job search, financial
management, skills development, and paraprofessional counseling services
for client and their families.

2.14. The Contractor shall provide staffing to fulfil) the roles and responsibilities that
support activities of this project, which shall Include medical and behavioral health
services that are delivered by providers operating within their scope of practice in
accordance with Chapter He-P 800 Residential Care and Health Facility Rules, Part
He-P 807 Rules for Residential Treatment and Rehabilitation. These should indude,
but are not limited to:
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
OPEN DOORS - Homeiessness Prevention and Supports for
Low Income Pregnant and Parenting Women with Substance Use Disorders

Exhibit A

2.14.1. One (1) Masters Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (MLADC) or Board
of Mental Health Licensed Clinician.

2.14.2. One (1) MLADC or Licensed Alcohol and Drug Counselor (LADC) for every
two (2) unlicensed counselors providing clinical services.

2.14.3. A sufficient number of MLADCs and/or LADCs with Licensed Clinical
Supervisor (LCS) credential to adequately provide for staff clinical
supervision.

2.14.4. One (1) Certified Recovery Support Worker (CRSW) for every 50 clients. All
unlicensed staff providing clinical or recovery support services must attain
certification as. CRSWs within six (6) months of hire.

2.14.5. One (1) half-time advanced registered nurse practitioner (ARNP) through
staffing or referral.

2.14.6. One (1) full-time Individual with expenence In child social emotional
development.

2.14.7. One (lj director/executive director.

2.15. The Contractor shall coordinate with a Department of Public Health Public Health
Epidemiologist In order to collect data, complete surveillance, and complete
evaluation of social determinants of health and other public health and community
health Indicators.

2.16. The Contractor shall provide annual training to clinical staff on HCV/HIV/TB & STDs.
The Contractor shall:

2.16.1. Ensure in-service training Is available to staff; or

2.16.2. Ensure staff attend an offsite training as approved by the Department; and

2.16.3. Provide a list of staff that attended and completed the trainings.

2.17. The Contractor shall prioritize clients being served & ensure the safety of clients by.

2.17.1. Assessing all clients for risk of self-harm at all phases of treatment as well
as at discharge based on policies and process approved by the Department
within 30 days from the contract effective date.

2.17.2. Erisuring appropriate staffing levels and continuity of care is maintained in a
state of an emergency.

2.17.3. Creating safety and emergency procedures within 3 months of the contract
effective date on the following:

2.17.3.1. Medical emergencies

2.17.3.2. Infection control and universal precautions, Including use of
protective clothing and devices

2.17.3.3. Reporting employee injuries

2.17.3.4. Fire monitoring, warning, evacuation, and safety drill policy and
procedures

2.17.3.5. Emergency closings.
I

Oreatsr Nashua Coundl on Alcoholism Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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Exhibit A

2.17.4. Ensuring alternative housing is available for all clients and their children.

2.17.5. Ensuring all staff receive training for emergency and disaster situations
through continuous staff development that includes, but is not limited to:

2.17.5.1. Adult and infant CPR. (Spell out the CPR acronym)

2.17.5.2. Use of Naloxone.

2.17.5.3. Rre and safety policies and procedures.

2.17.5.4. Universal precautions.

2.18. The Contractor shall ensure substance use disorder treatment services in this
agreement continue beyond the contract end date. The Contractor shall:

2.18.1. Pro>4de detailed plan for how services can be funded sustainabty at the
termination of the contract period.

2.16.2. Immediately begin seeking approval to conduct third party billing for any
eligible services.

2.18.3. Seek alternate sources of funding for non-billable services from sources the
contractor may Identify.

2.18.4. Continue to maintain and provide services the contractor already has In
place for the population at need.

2.19. The Contractor shall ensure Indi^dual Service Plans (ISPs) are developed for all
program participants and include a housing stability plan. The Contractor shall
ensure all clients are assessed for referral to internal program and/or community
partners to receive services that may include but are not limited to:

2.19.1. Housing assistance.

2.19.2. Supportive services.

2.19.3. Child care.

2.19.4. Family reunification assistance.

2.19.5. Primary and behavioral health care.

2.19.6. Education and employment training/ support.

2.20. The Contractor shall provide a written corrective action plan to the Department for
review and approval no later than 10 days from receiving notice of noncompllance
from the Department, If the Contractor is found out of compliance with any portion of
this agreement including, but not limited to, reporting requirements and/or time
frames specified in the contract.

2.21. The Contractor shall continue conducting activities specified in the corrective action
plan described in Section 2.14, as monitored by the Department, until such time the
Contractor comes into compliance with contract requirements.

3. 'Reporting

3.1. The Contractor shall provide monthly reports that Include, but are not limited to:

3.1.1. Year-to-date data on a Department-provided form.

Greater Nashua Coundl on Alcoholism Eidiibft A Contractor inHiab
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3.1.2. Brief narrative identifying barriers experienced when providing services In
the previous month.

3.1.3. Plan to address barriers identified in Section 3.1.2 during the following
month.

4. Benchmarks

4.1. The Contractor shall ensure 100% of services In this contract are operational no later
than 6 months after the contract effective date.

4.2. The Contractor shall ensure 95% of the Individuals on the waiting list described In
Section 2.4.3 are reached or attempted to be contacted at least one time per week.

4.3. The Contractor shall ensure that 100% of program participants, including children,
create an Individual Service Plan (ISP), as described in Section 2.17 that includes a
housing stability plan. The following may also be part of the ISP:

5. Deliverables

5.1. The Contractor shall provide a service implementation plan to ensure 100% of the
services Identified in this contract are available to a minimum of 30 women and their
children In the Greater Nashua, NH region.

5.2. The Contractor shall provide copies of all media used for outreach activities to the
Department for approval no later than 30 days from the contract effective date.

5.3. The Contractor shall provide written polices described In Section 2.8.2, 2.15.1 and
2.15.5 to the Department no later than 60 days from the contract effective date.

5.4. The Contractor shall provide a copy of the waiting list described in Section 2.4.3 to
the Department once every two (2) mortths.

5.5. The Contractor shall provide safety and emergency procedures In Section 2.15.5 to
the Department no later than 30 days from the contract effective date.

5.6. The Contractor shall provide sample staff development curriculum used In trainings
described In Section 2,15.5 to the Department no later than 30 days after the
contract effective date.

5.7. The Contractor shall provide the sustalnability plan described In Section 2.16.1 to the
Department no later than December 30, 2016:

Grtater Nashua Coundl on Alcohonsm EjdubilA Contndor InKhtsi Vl^
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Method and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Price Limitation, Biock 1.8, in
accordance with the budget in Exhibit B-1. Budget for the services provided by the Contractor
pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope of Services.

2. This contract is funded with federal funds. Department access to federal funding Is dependent upon
requirements of the Catalog of Federal and Domestic Assistance (CFOA) # 93.558 with federal
funds made available under the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance, CFDA #93.558. U.S.
Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children and Families. Temporary
Assistance for Needy Families Program.

3. Payment for said services shall be made as follows:

3.1.The Contractor will submit an invoice by the tenth working day of each month, which Identifies
and requests reimbursement for authorized expenses Incurred In the prior month. The State
shall make payment to the Contractor wlhin thirty (30) days of receipt of each Invoice for
Contractor services provided pursuant to (his Agreement.

3.2.The invoice must be submitted by mail or e-maii to:

Rnanclal Manager-Division of Family Assistance
Department of Health and Human Sen/ices
129 Reasant Street

Concord, NH 03301

4. A final payment request shall be submitted no later than forty (40) days from the Form P37, General
Provisions, Contract Completion Date, Block 1.7.

5. Notvrithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Contractor agrees that funding under this
Contract may be withheld, in whole or in part. In the event of noncpmpliance with any Slate or
Federal law, rule or regulatbn applicable to the sen/ices provided, or if the said services have not
been completed in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

6. When the contract price limitation Is reached, the program shall continue to operate at full capacity at
no charge to the State of New Hampshire for the duration of the contract period.

7. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the Form P-37, General Provisions, an amendment limited to
transfer the funds wthin the budget in Exhibit B-1 and within the price limitation, can be made by
written agreement of both parties and may be made without obtaining approval of the Governor and
Executive Council.

Greater Nashua Coundl on Alcohonsm. Exhibit B Contractor initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health arid Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants end agrees that all funds received by the Contractor
under the Contract shall be used only as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
Individuals and, In the furtherarice of the ̂ oresald covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows:

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws; If the Contractor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuals such ellglt>ility determination shall be made In accordance vwth applicable federal arxl
state laws, regulations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2. Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be made and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shali maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall Include all
Information necessary to support an ellglbtiity determination and such other Information as the
Department requests. The Contractor shall furnish the Department with ail forms and documentation
regarding eiigibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

A. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder. as well as
individuals declared Ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-applicant shall be Informed of his/her right to a fair
hearing In accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contractor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuity or offer of employment on behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State In order to Influence the performance of the Scope of Work detailed In Exhibit A of this
Contract The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if It is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of emptoyment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract or in any
' other document, contract or understanding, (t Is expressly underwood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
end no payments shall be made for expenses Incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the Individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations) prior to a determination that the Indhridual Is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained In the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Depar^ent to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible Individuals or other third party
funders for such service, if at any time during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Department shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such costs, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may elect to:
7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established;
7.2. Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs;

0^ I
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7.3. Demand repayment of.the excess payment by the Contractor In which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor Is
permitted to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees to
reimburse the Department for ell funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any Individual who Is found by the Department to be Ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8.. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:
8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs

and other expenses Incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained In accordance with accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
property reflect all such costs and expenses, and which are acceptable to the Department, and
to Include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, Inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statistical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
services during the Contract Period, which records shall Include all records of application and
eligibility (Including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the'Department regulations, the
'Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. It Is recommended that the report be prepared In accordance VN^th the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Govemments, and Non
Profit Organizations" and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Govemmental Organizations,
Programs. Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits.
9.1. Audit and Review: During the term of this Contract and the period for retention hereunder, the

Department, the United States Department of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audiL examination, excerpts and transcripts.

9.2. Audit Uabilitles: In addition to and not in any way In limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federal audit exceptions and shall return to the DepartmenL ail parents made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. ConfldentJallty of Records: Ail information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such Information In connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any Information concerning a redpient for any purpose not
directly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder Is prohibited except on written consent of the redpient, his
attomey or guardian.

Eidu'blt C - Sp«ci8l Provisions Contraclor Initials
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein the covenants and conditions contained In
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoever.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical; The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
times If requested by the Department.
11.1. Interim Financial Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of

all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other Information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shali be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Department.

11.2. Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shall be In a form satlsfectory to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives stated in the Proposal
and other Infomiation required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for In the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the tennination of the Contract) shall terminate, provided however, that If, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Department shad disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at Its discretion, to deduct the amourrt of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall indude the following
statement:

13.1. The preparation of this (report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the State of New Hampshire and/or such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials (written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shall have prior approval from DHHS before printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original materials
produced, including, but not limited, to, brochures, resource directories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports. Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

I

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall Impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility, if any governmental license or
permit shall be requlr^ for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
condrtior^ of each such license or permit in connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract ttie facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shell be In conformance with local building and zoning codes, by
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP): The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), If It has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, It will maintain a cument EEOP on file and submit an EEOP Certification Form to the
OCR. certifying that its EEOP Is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR certifying It is not required to submit or melntain an EEOP. Non
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational Institutions are exempt from the
EEOP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at http://www.ojp.usdpJ/about/ocr/pdfs/cenpdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination Includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1668 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1664, Contractors must take reasonable steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access to Its programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Employee Whistleblower Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined In 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

Contractor Employee Whistleblower Rights and RequirementTo Inform Employees of
Whistleblower Rights (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject to the whistleblower rights
and remedies In the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at
41 U.S.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L
112-239) and PAR 3.908.

(b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712. as described In section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

(c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this paragraph (c), in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

16. Subcontractors: DKHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(8). Thb Is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the ddegation or Imposing sanctions If
the subcontractor's performance Is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those conditions.
When the Contractor delegates a function to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the following:
19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractors ability to perform the activities, before delegating

the function

19.2. Have a written agreement with the subcontractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractors
performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractors performance on an ongoing basis

Exhibit C - Spedal Provisions Contractor Initials
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19.4. Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed

19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor Identifies deficiencies or areas for Improvement are Identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

\

DEFINITIONS
As used In the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings;

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect items of expense determined by the Department to be
allowable and reimbursable In accordance with cost and accounting prindples established In accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which Is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines" and which contains the regulations governing the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be provided to eligible
Individuals by the Contractor In accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor Is to provide to eUglble Individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and spedfied In Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or stale laws, regulations, rules, orders, and poDcies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Department of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of ail regulations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541«A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees thatftjnds provided under this
Comrect will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit C - Special Provisions Contractor Initials
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract. Conditional Nature of Agreement Is
replaced as follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obilgalions of the State
hereunder, including without limitation, the continuance of payments, In whole or In part,
under this Agreement are contingent upon continued appropriation or availability of funds',
including any subsequent changes to the appropriation or availability of funds affected by
any state or federal legislative or executive action that reduces, eliminates, or otherwise
modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement and the Scope of
Services provided In Exhibit A. Scope of Services, In whole or In part. In no event shall the
State be liable for any payments hereunder In excess of appropriated or available funds. In
the event of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the
State shall have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available. If ever. The
State shall have the right to reduce, terminate or modify services under this Agreement
Immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such reduction, termination or modification.
The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other source or account Into the
Account(s) Identified In block 1.6 of the General Provisions, Account Number, or any other
account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

' 2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract. Termination, is amended by adding the
following language;

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of
the Stale, 30 days after giving the Contractor written notice that the State Is exercising its
option to terminate the Agreement

10.2 in the event of early termination, the Contrarior shall, within 15 days of notice of early
termination, develop and submit to the State a Transition Plan for sendees under the
Agreement, Including but not limited to, Identifying the present and future needs of clients
receiving senrlces under the Agreement and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed
Information to support the Transition Plan Including, but not limited to, any Information or
data requested by the State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan
and shall provide ongoing communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the State as
requested.

10.4 In the event that services under the Agreement. Including but not limited to clients receiving
services under the Agreement are transltloned to having services delivered by another entity
including contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for
uninterrupted delivery of services In the Transition Plan.

10.5 The Contractor shall establish a method of notrf^ng clients and other affected individuals
about the transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its
Transition Plan submitted to the State as deschbed above.

3. The Department resenres the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2) additional years, subject
to the continued availability of furxis, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the
Governor and Executive Council.
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply the provisions of
Sections 6151-5160 of the Drug-FreeWorkplace Actof 1988 (Pub. L 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

ALTERNATIVE I - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION • CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementrrig Sections 5151-6160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Actof 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 etseq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part II of the May 25.1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub
contractors). prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
regulation provides that a grantee (and by Inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State .
may elect to make one certification to the Department In each federal fiscal year in lieu of certificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The certificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pleasant Street,
Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-hee workplace by:
1.1. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,

dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance Is prohibited In the grantee's
workplace and specifying V^e actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prohibition;

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-fi^ awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.L The dangers of drug abuse in the worl^lace;
1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
1.2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and
1.2.4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations '

occurring in the workplace;
1.3. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be

given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);
1.4. Notifying the employee In the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of

employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terrris of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in >vrlting of his or her conviction for a violation of a crirhinal drug

statute occurring In the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency In writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherv^se receiving actual notice of such consdctlon.
Empbyers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on >vhose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

Exhibit D - Certrficstion regarding Drug Free Contrsetorlnltiab.
Workplace Requirements /
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit D

has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
Identification number(s) of each affected grant;

1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 (lender days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taldng appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and Including

termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

1.6.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactonly In a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

1.7. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace Uirough
implementation of paragraphs 1.1.1.2,1.3,1.4,1.5, and 1.6.

2. The grantee may Insert in the space provided below the 8ite(s) for the performance of work done in
connection wth the specific grant

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)

Check □ If there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

Con me

Date Name: KnjUr
Title:

ExhibR D - Certifjcalion regsrdlnQ Drug Free Contractor Initials
Workplace Roqulrements
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

ExhibH E

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification:

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - COhTTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
•Ternporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title IV-A
"Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
•Social Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
•Medlcaid Program under Title XIX
•Community Services Block Grant under Title VI
•Child Care Development Block Grant under Title IV

The undersigned certifies, to Oie best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or.on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for Influencing or attempting to influence an officer or emf^oyee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. If any fUnds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person.fbr
Influencing or attempting to Influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection vrfth this
Federal contract, granL loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL. (Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying, In accordance with its Instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-l.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included In the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sut>grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification Is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered Into. Sutxrirssion of this certification Is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name: 'h HUththfr*

Date Name; Kdl

Exhibit E • Cerlincatlon Regarding Lobbying Contrsdor IniUab.
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit F

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION
AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS

The Contractor identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply vnth the provisions of
Executive Office of the President. Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the

certification set out below.

2. The Inability of a person to provide the certrfication required below will not necessarily result in denial,
of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the prospective participant shaO submit an
explanation of why It cannot provide the certification-. The certification or explanation will be
considered in connection wi^ the NH Department of Health and Human Services' (OHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prosp^ive primary
participant to furnish a certification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from partiapation in
this transaction.

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If It Is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an errorieous certification. In addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DHHS may terminate this trar\saction for cause or default

4. The prospective primary participant shall provide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that Its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reas/on of changed
circumstances.

5. The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal," "proposal," and
"voluntarily excluded," as used In this clause, have the meanings set out In the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

k

6. The prospective primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaction tie entered Into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
trar^saction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in ti>ls covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS.

7. ■ The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will Include the
clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension. Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions," provided by DHHS, without modification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification Is erroneous. A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List (of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained In the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render In good teith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Oobarment. Suspension Contractor Inltiab
And Other ResponsibPity Matters
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Exhibits

Information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person In the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instAictJons, if a participant In a
covered transaction knowingly enters Into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation In this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of Its knowledge and belief, that it and Its

principals:
11.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;
11.2. have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had

a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

11.3. are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated In paragraph (l)(b)
of this certification; and

11.4. have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or defoulL

12. Where the prospective primary participant Is unable to certify to any of the statements In this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as

defined In 45 CFR Part 76^ certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:
13.1. are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared Ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.
13.2. where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such

prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled 'Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibllity, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,' without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

ContractarName: ifrca-k''

Date Name: IfHcr
Title:

Exhibit F •> CartWeation Regarding Debarment, Suepentlon Contractor tnitlels
And Other Responsibility Matters
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit G

CERTIFICATION OF COMPHANCE WITH REQUiREMEWTS PERTAINING TO
FEDERAL NONDISCRIMINATION. EQUAL TREATMENT OF FATTH-BASED ORGANIZATIONS AND

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor Identified In Section 1,3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the follovMng
certification:

Contractor virjjj comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrlminatlon requirements, v/hich may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1965 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equal Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Ad. Recipients of federal funding under this

• statute are prohibited from discriminating, either In employment practices or in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Ad of i 964 (42 U.S.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin In any program or activity);

- the Rehabilitation Ad of 1973 (29 U.S.C. Sedion 794), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability. In regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Ad of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities In employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sedlons 1681,1683,1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex In federally asslstisd education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Secfions 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age In programs or activities receiving Federal finandal assistance. It does not indude
employment discrimination;

- 28 C.F.R. pt 31 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - OJ JDP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pL 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Nondiscrlminatlon; Equal Employment Opportunity; Polldes
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); &(ecutive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental prindples and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood oiganlzations;

- 28 C.F.R. pL 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Regulations - Equhl Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 tJ.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorization
Act(NDAA)for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enaded January 2,2013) the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contrad Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blovring activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out beiow is a material representation of fact upon which reliance Is placed when the
agency awards the grant False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or
debarment

Exhibit G
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit 6

In the event a Federal or Slate court or Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provlslorts
indicated above.

Date

Contractor^Nam

n Ml<r trName:

Title: ail

Exhibit G

ipaililning
•no

tain*

Rav. 10/2m4

WNrtabMMf p(«tMfeo»

Pagt 2 of 2

Contractor Initials

Oats

«\/



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit H

CERTIFICATION REGARDING ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994
(Act), requires that smoking not be permitted In any portion of any Indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children's services provided In private residences, fadlities funded solely by
Medicare or Medlcald funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatlent drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the (aw may result In the Imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the Imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity.

The Contractor Identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's
representative as Identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification;

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts to comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Children Act of 1994.

Contra

Date

7/?-?//6
W

a/\

Name:

Title:
lots'
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Extilbll H - CcfUflcadon Regarding
Environmental Tobacco Smoke

Page 1 of 1

Contractor Initials

Data ¥



New Hampshire Department of Heafth and Human Services

Exhibit I

HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT

BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act. Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually identifiable Health Information. 45
CFR Parts 160 and 164 applicable to business assodates. As defined herein, "Business
Assodate" shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and "Covered
Entity" shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.

a. 'Breach' shaH have the same meaning as the term 'Breach' in section 164.402 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations.

b- 'Business Associate" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. 'Covered Entity" has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45.
Code of Federal Regulations. i

d. 'Designated Record Set'shall have the same meaning as the term 'designated record set"
In 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. "Data Aggreoatlon' shall have the seme meaning as the term "data aggregation' in 45 CFR
Section. 164.501.

'Health Care Qperations* shall have the same meaning as the term 'health care operations'
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. 'HITECH Act" means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXIII, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

V

h. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
Information, 45 CFR Parts 160,162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. 'Individuar shall have the same meaning as the term "individual' in 45 CFR Section 160.103
and shall Include a person who qualifies as a personal representative In accordance with 45
CFR Section 164.601(g).

j. 'Privacv Rule' shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Department of Health and Human Sen/lces.

k- 'Protected Health InformatiDn" shall have the same meaning as the term "protected health
Information" in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the Information created or received by
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity.

ExKbftl Contractor InHiaJ# j[
Heaith Insurance Portability Act . ^
Business Assodate Agreement
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Exhibit I

I. 'Required by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term "required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretarv" shall mean the Secretary of the Department of Health and Human Services or
his/her designee.

n. 'Security Rule" shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

o. "Unsecured Protected Health Information" means protected health information that Is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health infonnatlon unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endorsed by
a standards developing organization that Is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute.

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
- established under 45 C.F.R. Parts 160,162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH

Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Infonnatlon.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
II. As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth In paragraph d. below; or
III. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered

Entity.

c. To the extent Business Associate Is permitted under the Agreement to disclose PHI to a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. ' The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide serviceis under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disdosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disdosure, the Business

3/2014 Exhibfll Contractor Initials
HeaRb Insurance Portability Ad
Business Assodste Agreemenl
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Exhibit I

Assoclate.shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI iri violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Enlrty's Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by the Agreement Including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health Information of the Covered Entity.

b. - The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of tHe protected health information involved, including the
types of Identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

0 The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed
o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been

mitigated.

The Business Associate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and Immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy. Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Associate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, Including
the duty to retum or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (I). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor's business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PW

3^2014 Exhibit I Contfactof Initiate '
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit I

pursuant to this Agreement, .with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be govemed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health Information.

f. Within five (5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall make available dunng normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

g. Wtthin ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity.
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as directed by Covered Entity, to an individual In order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enabie Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PHI and information related to

such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528. ;

j. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill Its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHI in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, or accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwanjing the
Individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business

, Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

I. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall return or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction Is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Associate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business /Ja /
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, In its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI. the Business Assodate shall certify to
Covered Errtity that the PHI has been destroyed.

(4) ObllQatlons of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Assodate of any changes or llmitationfs) In Its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals In accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate's
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity .shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disdosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Assodate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to In accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extertt that such restriction may affect Business Associate's use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions (P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediately terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knov^edge of a breach by Business Assodate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit I. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a b'meframe spedfied by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure Is feasible. Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary.

(6) Mlscelianeoufi

a- Definitions and Reouiatorv References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to indude this ̂ hibit I, to
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effect or as
amended.

h. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to take such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

c. Data Ownership. The Business Assodate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resolved
to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. ^ /

ExhIbttI Ccntractof Initials f ,
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Seoreoation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit I or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance Is held invalid, such Invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; to this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit I are declared severable.

Sunrival. Provisions in this Exhibit I regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the protections of the Agreement in section (3) I, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit I.

The State
tesaisc

Ll

Name^f lhe<;ontraator

Signattire-df7^;thonzed Representative Signature of Authorized

aV S'tfW ktllfAfr
of Authorized Representative Name of AuthorizedName Name of Authorized Rep

tivese

Date

resentative

Title of Authorized Representative
C€0

Title of Au^orized Representative

Dat

3/2014 Exhibfti

Heotlh Insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement
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CERTIFICATiON REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT fFFATAt COMPUANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of Individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1. 2010, to.report on
data related to executive compensation and associated first-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
Initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result In a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award Is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.
In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (OHHS) must report the following Information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:
1. Name of entity

Amount of award

Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle place of perfonnance
Unique Identifier of the entity (DUNS #)

10. Total compensation and names of the top five executives If:
10.1. A^ore than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those

revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation Information Is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days. In which
the award or award amendment Is made.
The Contractor Identified In Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252.
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as Identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions
execute the following Certification:
The below named Contractor agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Rnancial Accountability and Transparency Act.

Oate^

Co or

Name: ftV'-
T'tle:

CUOKHSn 10719

Exhibit U - Cerllflcatlon Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials
AccounlabiDty And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance
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FORMA

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, I certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

^. The DUNS number for your entity is;

2. In your business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1)80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or
cooperative agreements?

NO YES

If die answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to Information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Excharige Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 7to(d)) or secdon 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986?

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If die answer to #3 above Is NO, please answer the following:
/*

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers In your business or
organization are as follows:

Name:

Name:

Name:,

Name:,

Name:

Amount:

Amount

Amount:

Amount:

Amount

CUOKHSmOTU

ExhM J - Certification Regartflng the Federal Funding
AccountabiOyAnd Tranapareney Act (FFATA) CcmpGance
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